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Directors and Senior Management
EERREEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 62, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He
is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's
business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the

Group. He has more than 39 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 60, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a
co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and
administration of the Group. He has more than 39 years’ experience in the plastics
industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional

Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony, aged 53, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is
in charge of R&D Centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr
Wong was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and
Manufacturing Systems Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a
B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D degree in chemical engineering and is also a
Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a corporate member of The Institution of
Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He
had worked for two multinational chemical companies prior to taking up a lecturer

post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wabh, aged 58, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai
holds a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
the Law Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital
Territory. He has been practicing law for over 25 years. He is also an Associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Manager of three
secondary schools and one primary school in Hong Kong, and Member of the Panel

of Adjudicators of the Control of Obscene and Indecent Articles Ordinance.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 51,

administration of the Group. She joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a member

is responsible for personnel and office

of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has more than 24 years’ experience in

plastic materials trading.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 58, is the sole proprietor of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in
Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 59, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He has more than 30 years' experience in plastic trading. He was
formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic
University. He is now the President of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers
Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Vice President of
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and Executive Vice President of Hong Kong
Brands Protection Alliance. He has also been awarded the Chief Executive’s

Commendation for Community Service.

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 39, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of a reputable real estate company. Mr Ching is responsible for its overall financial
management and corporate finance. He had been the Vice President - Finance for
Hong Kong and China Gas Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited (BB R EERER D

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and was responsible for the overall financial

&), a company listed on the

management of its joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr
Ching had also been executive director, finance director, company secretary and
qualified accountant of the Company. He has more than 16 years of experience in
auditing, finance and accounting. He obtained a bachelor of business administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an executive master of
business administration degree from the Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006
respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERREEEAS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 54, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, and is responsible for
marketing and product development management of engineering plastic materials
for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in 1997 and has over 28 years'
experience in the plastics industry globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ng has
held several key positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic

materials sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 44, is the Technology Development Director in Greater
China of the Group. He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration,
compounding technology and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a
higher diploma in textile chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering
Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group
in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 20

years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 38, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing
in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over |5 years'

experience in sales & marketing.

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 36, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of
Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
charterholder and a Certified Financial Risk Manager. He has over |3 years'
experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial and

treasury management of the Group.

e 2008 / 2009 Annual Report

EEEEAR

REAKE 545 REIRERBRLG)
BRETREN(LB)ARAFARRETRRZER
(BFR)ERLRZEZREY  REARET
BEMMSHEREMSFREE REEHE
BREXRERFEZEMELEM - FR—AN
tEMALKE  REBXERRE-TN\F
B o MIMAREER - RELERBHEE
CEEEER AEGAMEBEIRENZHE
RERTSHEREEIE -

REPRE  4px - REERFERIERE
B ABEATEEMSMNEMEE  BRMNT
BMREREFPHAE - REEHEAEIZR
(BABIRZZAS)BE 2HBILESRX
B URERTEMBRABRECIRERE
T8« RR—ANANFMAREELR—N
NAFEE - BER-NANANFEPEMAKXE
B TRENECRELIBRITFERESR
“TEER -

EEELE 385 RELBRM (FR) AR
NAZBEE  AREBRHTSHERBEE
Ao RRAMBERENRE RS LS
ik mERMNARBHEE z THERE LS
fi o WR—NADFMARKE - EEERT
SHRETAREATLFER

BRERLLE 365 NASEZMBAERR
ANE BREHEAREERZINERS
T(EHRER B0 THARBARMAZE
5% @ University of Paris-Dauphineft & 78 %
ZEBEREHBBEELE  TARES
FAREGHMAGEREE BEGHAAE
28  KFITUEH AR BRRERERRE
BAC BREE - BBEREFAECERS T
SHEER AEARECVBRRAEE -



SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr LU Yu Ben, aged 69, is the General Manager of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Science from East China University of Science and Technology. He is an
admitted senior engineer by Chinese Government and he has researched and
studied for plastic materials in Japan. He has over 30 years’ experience in plastic
industry, particular in modified engineering plastics, compounded resins and plastic
materials testing. His research papers have been released in professional plastics

magazines in China.

Mr NG Hok Lim, Steve, aged 54 , is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co., Ltd, and is responsible for Sales, Marketing, Product
Development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic
industries in Shanghai and Eastern China Provinces plus the overall management of
the Shanghai Ngai Hing operations. He holds a Master Degree of Philosophy in
Organic Chemistry and a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in August 2007. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Ng has over 28 years' experience in business management and held several
senior positions in various Multinational Companies and a China Local Company for
sales and marketing of Specialties Chemicals plus New Product Development in Asia

Pacific Regions.
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Chairman’s Statement
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th
June 2009. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of
HK$1,129,930,000 (2008: HK$1,580,225,000) and loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$20,757,000 (2008: profit of HK$24,193,000). Loss per share
for the year were HK5.62 cents (2008: earnings per share of HK6.64 cents). To
reserve cash for future development or operational use, the Board of Directors (the

"Board") does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Last year, the global financial turmoil caused a heavy blow to the US and European
economies, and Mainland China and Hong Kong were also affected. Industries were
dived into recession and demand for consumer products dropped, and the plastic
industry suffered as a result. However, as the business environment gradually
improved in the second half year and with the effective policies of the Group,
performance of the Group in the second half year was better than in the first half
year with loss reduced to HK$20,757,000. The stringent cost control measures
implemented during the year and the stabilised material prices in the second half
year, leading to the gross profit margin of the Group for the year being improved

from 9% last year to close to [0%.

During the year, our cost control measures harvested. Distribution costs decreased
by 17% against last year and employee benefit expenses through natural attrition
were reduced by approximately 19%. Furthermore, through strict inventory and
purchasing control, the Group managed to trim inventory by 23% maintaining it at a
healthy level. Reducing inventory also helped overall cost control. During the year,
the Group also stepped up efforts in collection of receivables, thus trade and bills
receivables declined by 42%. And with interest rate, inventory and borrowings
lowered, the interest expense of the Group came down by 33% against last year and

the Group's gearing ratio accordingly lowered.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd) XBOEE

During the year, engineering plastics business reported the most satisfactory FN - IRBHEBRAEARERE  REAE
performance among the business operations of the Group. Profit before taxation of NBREFLEABS 2 ZT+HZE415,476,000%
the business increased by 27% year-on-year to approximately HK$15,476,000. Gross T ERERTENEBBBED 2T  BFlgE
profit margin also grew to over 20%. The notable improvement in profitability was NEBBELRE FEIBREMHBESLT
mainly attributable to the drop in raw material price and the Group's efforts to B URERASELFERANNEEERSE
strengthen its Product Development division over the years which has enhanced its B2 BBRAE FFTEERMEES - BN
capability to produce tailor-made products. With these capabilities, the Group was EEARDAEHEEL T ZRERA TN R/
able to develop and sell over 70 new higher margin products during the year  Ed @ fINEEAREFREB AN AR ER1E

including plastics with specific functions for manufacturing kitchenware and toys. R Bt EEXBETRANBI 2T
Thus, although a drop in turnover of 21% was recorded, the business was still able HIERT  MAAREEFRAIBENAFE
to contribute profit to the Group. Bl o

The global financial crisis seriously dammed international trade and global BAR2ReRERITERIESEY B2
consumption power and export and import activities worldwide. The Group’s — BUBENIRAR TR « e 2RKAEL D
plastics trading business was also affected. Although the Group adopted prudent &) - REENBRBRHEZFEBRAMZ I
inventory strategy to reduce the impact of fluctuation in raw material prices on its 2 BRRTEECERBENTERE - hk
business, the number of orders received by its Hong Kong business serving mainly — JRERMAHEREBFRNEATE  TH

export customers decreased. This resulted in a marked 28% drop in turnover from AEENBEEBALABEFP AL FTER
trading for the year, and together with the slight drop of 1% in gross profit margin, AEEMHL  HRESEBEEFHENE T ®
plastics trading business incurred loss. BOZ-TN\ MEEMEEUTERESZ

— DREBRHESEBHREEE -

Also affected by decreased orders for export, colorant and compounded plastic REXEATERINTE  SEHERE
resin business reported a 27% drop in turnover. However, the Group has started to BHEEE TR 2Tt KEBNFRE
manufacture high value-added plastic products such as those for the manufacturing Wiﬁ%ifﬁﬁﬂﬁuu CIEEBEFEMK
of digital electronic products and food packaging in recent years. This together with nBE EFEﬁH—r mERMHERTH -
the drop in raw material prices led to a 3% gain in gross profit margin despite the %ﬂﬂr— EMRABSZ= -

adverse market environment.

During the year, the Group relocated certain processing production lines in EFR - REEAEENREER  NTEAKE
Dongguan to its Taipo plant in Hong Kong. The move is not only conducive to the FEREEREBELH([CEPAl BERD
long-term development of the Group, but has also allowed the Group to enjoy the ZARELHETARES  AREMRZMT
6.5% custom tariff benefit under The Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic ~ BZLFHHHEERKBERENAEEE
Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA™), helping it save cost and enhance mREKARRERHET S

competitiveness.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2010, with the market showing signs of recovery recently, the
Group believes the worst of the global financial crisis has retreated. The
management expects material prices to stabilise which will enable the Group to
maintain the overall gross profit margin of its business. The Group is thus cautiously

optimistic about its prospects.

With the support of its staff, the Group will uphold the fundamental principle of
diversifying income streams and controlling costs. It will optimise the production
processes of its plants so as to create a solid foundation catering for long-term
growth of its business. In the future, the Group will continue to implement cost
control measures and review the credit policy of receivables regularly to minimise
operating cost and risk. In addition, the Group has postponed its plan to the
construction of the engineering plastics plant in Shanghai until the market improves
to allow for reduction of capital expenditure and better control on cash flow.
Regarding taxation, the Group will continue to examine the production processes in
Mainland China and Hong Kong to realise maximum cost effectiveness as permitted
by CEPA. Moreover, it will complete the purchase of the Taipo plant in Hong Kong in
the fourth quarter of this year, which expects to lead to reduction in rental
expenses in the future. The Group expects the capital expenditure for the new plant

mentioned is approximately HK$9,000,000.

The Group will continue to actively develop new products and markets to widen its
income streams. It will also monitor closely the order trend in the traditional peak
season in 2010 to facilitate adjustment of business strategy flexibly and match the
market needs. For the engineering plastics business of higher profit margin, the
Group has been developing plastic products for manufacturing digital electronic
products and kitchen wares with the hope of grooming major steady income
sources. Apart from enriching its product mix, the Group has been active in
exploring new markets. In the coming vear, it will grasp enormous opportunities in
Northern China and expand plastics trading business to the Tianjin and nearby
market with the aim of enlarging its share in the China market and broadening

income source.

The management, with many years of experience in the plastic industry, will navigate
the Group in overcoming the challenges in the overall operating environment and
capturing every opportunity for the Group to ensure steady development of its

business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

V)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2009, the Group has
available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$338,255,000, of which
approximately HK$99,196,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties in the PRC and Hong Kong owned by the Group
(see notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 30th June 2009 amounted to approximately HK$90,652,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2009 was approximately 27%, based on the
total bank borrowings of approximately HK$98,971,000, together with obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$2,740,000 and the shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$376,875,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities
are disclosed in notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated
in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its

exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Contd)
At 30th June 2009, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group’s exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:

o . %
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Chairman’s Statement
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REBBETRZIVERR - AKEFLIVE
EHEN -R-TTNFRA=TH RHER
ZEHEHZAENT

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTUEAZET 1,107,600 l,165400
Sell US dollars for HK dollars THEXTTUE AR 195,000 405,600

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2009, the Group had approximately 670 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group.The
Group also provides social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.

APPRECIATION

, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my
fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group
will, as always, with prudence used its best endeavour to strive for its long-term
development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more

promising results in the coming vyear.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th September 2009
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 30th June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group'’s performance for the year by geographical segment is set

out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 41.

At a meeting held on 4th March 2009, the Directors resolved not to declare any

interim dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2008.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are

set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES ] it 5 Tk ik 8

As at 30th June 2009, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, RZZZNFAA=ZTH  ARAAHAR 2

comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to FHROBREHBAKRREBEN) O A

approximately HK$68,409,000 (2008: HK$66,304,000). 68,409,000 T (ZZZ )\ ¥ : 66,304,000/
TT) e

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not BERRE-NN-FRADEEES]) @ WA
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there EEBHERNAANENRES S ELEHS
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the RERESEEEERIMBE - KT
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value BEZVEREERSESAMEREEERAR
of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities BIRAERNRECEE  AZARTEE
and its issued share capital and share premium account. KRR EHEEHBRPIEL DK ©

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BrERE

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and ARRB 2R EIARA A AR ST B R 2 1R
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which MBREEG T EREAD TR HIMER
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing BEREZEMBAES -

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY IFERBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last AEERBETEMBFEREZ%E  BERE
five financial years is set out on page |38. EHNF138E °

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S BE -HERBEAARZLTES
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the ARAIRAFEUEBELHERE - $’\ﬂE§H\
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's £ WE ARAFETEBENLERR
listed securities during the year. ZEmER -
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme

(the "New Scheme”) and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms

of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and

employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Purpose

The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

Qualifying participants

Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share
Option may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The
total number of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any

[2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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V)

SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s (the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between
5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.

@ 2008 / 2009 Annual Report
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

Details of the movements of Share Options outstanding as at 30th June 2009 are as

follows:
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Number of Share Options
RREZRGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year  The year
RitAA TEHR iRE ) EpRH FROE ERRL EX
Executive Directors
ynEs
Mr HUI Sai Chung Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 - —  (1,000,000) -
FEEEE -%5%= st May 2009 08257
RAZH _TIMFRACAZ
“RENETA-H
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — —  (1,000,000) —
Ik 2 Ist May 2009 08287
RAZA “TTRFRACAE
“RENFRA-H
2nd May 2003 nd May 2006 to HK$082 1,000,000 — —  (1,000000) —
e+ Ist May 2009 08287
RAZH “FRNFRACRE
“REAFRA-H
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000) -
FEREE It % 50 Ist May 2009 0827
RAZH _TIMFRACAZ
“RENETA-H
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000) —
It 2 Ist May 2009 08287
TAZH “TTRFRACAE
“RENFRA-H
2nd May 2003 nd May 2006 to HK$082 1,000,000 — —  (1,000000) —
e+ Ist May 2009 08287
TAZH “ERNFRACRE
“REAFIA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) B e
Number of Share Options
BREZRAYE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year The year
REBH AERR R B ERRE  ERAE ER&L EX
Executive Directors (Contd)
HIEZ(B)
Dr WONG ChiYing, 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000) —
Anthony _%%= Ist May 2009 080T
TR BAZH “SEMERE-AZ
“EEN\FRA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
It S Ist May 2009 082 AT
1AZH “TTREFRACRE
“EENERA-A
Ind May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000) —
_%%= Ist May 2009 080T
BHAZH “SE FRACAE
“EEN\FRA-H
Mr LAl Kam Wah Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$082 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000 —
RRERE 53= Ist May 2009 082AT
HAZH “TIMERACRE
“EENERA-A
Ind May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — (1,000,000) —
I Ist May 2009 080T
BAZH “ZTRFRACAE
“EEN\FRA-H
Ind May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
“55cF Ist May 2009 08T
1AZH “TTRERACRE
“EENERA-A
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BRE @)
Number of Share Options
RREZRGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year  The year
RitAA TEHR iRE ) EpRH FROE ERRL EX
Executive Directors (Contd)
yrEs(®)
Madam LIU Sau Lai Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$082 1,000,000 — —  (1,000,000) —
BABRT -%%= Ist May 2009 08257
RAZH “ZEIMERACAE
“EENFRA-A
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$082 1,000,000 — —  (1,000,000) —
Z5%= Ist May 2009 0827
LAZH “TTRFRACAE
“REAFRA-H
2nd May 2003 nd May 2006 to HK$082 1,000,000 — —  (1,000000) —
e+ Ist May 2009 08287
RRAZR “FENFRACAE
“RENETA-H
Other continuous 30th April 2003 30th April 2004 to HK$0.82 500,000 — — (500,000) —
contract employees It 3 50 29th Apri 2009 0827
ERtANER MA=+H “TIMFMAZTRE
“ERAFMAZTAR
30th April 2003 30th April 2005 to HK$082 500,000 - - (500,000) —
ZE%= 29th April 2009 082 %7
MA=t1H _ZENEMA=THE
“REAERACTAR
30th April 2003 30th April 2006 to HK$0.82 500,000 — — (500,000) —
e+ 29th April 2009 08287
mA=tH “REAFBACTRE

“EHAFRASTAR
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BRE @)
Number of Share Options
REREZRGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise ~ Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year The year
RiHAS AR &8 B FRRE ERAE ERAL EX
Other continuous
contract employees (Contd)
ERftaNER(D)
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$0.82 2000000 - — (2000000) -
e Ist May 2009 080T
RAZH _TIMFRR_AZ
“ZENEIA-H
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 2000000 - — (2000000) -
I Ist May 2009 080T
RAZH _TTRFRRCAR
—ZENFIA-H
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,800,000 - —  (1800000) —
_%%= Ist May 2009 080T
RAZH “TTRFRRCAR
“ZENFIA-H
[3th February 2008 I3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 - — - 500,000
“ZE)\E to 12th February 2014 078 T
—At=H “EENE-ATZRE
“F-BE-AtCH
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2010 HK$0.78 500,000 - — - 500,000
“ZE)\E to 12th February 2014 078 T
—At=H “E-SE_ATZRE
“F-mE-AtCR
[3th February 2008 I3th February 201 HK$0.78 500,000 - — - 500,000
“ZE)\E to 12th February 2014 078 T
—At=H “E--H-ATZRE
“F-BE-AtCR
23,800,000 — —  (22300000) 1500000

No Share options were granted or exercised during the year.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2009 are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony

Mr LAl Kam Wah

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr FONG Pong Hing " (Resigned on 9 February 2009)

Mr CHAN Dit Lung ©

Mr CHING Yu Lung * (Appointed on 9 February 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Contd) 46 )

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr  RBEAD B 2 A RIAREIES7E - FFE Y A4 -
CHING Yu Lung retire by rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's ~ Ef 211 - RRKELTERBNELEES R
Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. HROEHREREBEEREL -

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject — BYIEHITEENRIEARD A 2 DA HMAES

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. - ERERRESR -

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link AEENFMRER A2 EXRE 2 EE
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and ~ EIRMREBASHEEINFE RRBRAEEM
long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive EHZE ) - BRRERENAERFN R
industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives By ZEEHNRE - HEBLBEEETHA
essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an BUEIRENRENS - aREEAERD
equity component that is designed to align the long-term interest of management AEBERRAARS S BRIEBBRERE
RENG—H - FHEBERFREESH

with those of shareholders. The remuneration package comprises of annual Z
directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and incentive scheme. % B RSO RERE -

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly BUBTEZ MeEEaBRMEEES
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee ~ BRAAZEGGHMMN L 2 AR REMH ° F
meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees. MEBREFEESHRS -

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EEZREEN
None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual AERNEERRBFRAE IBERET ESH
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, ~ ZEEARN B K EEANB AR LEZTTR

which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of ~ —FNBAELRE CEEREERIN ML
compensation, other than statutory compensation. FRIBEH -
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS EENGHZ RS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the ARA - EERARSHMBARLELEET
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a VEAEEEBRERURAFE ARG IARF
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, — EREAKEDAEREA AT EEEELHE
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. BEREERARGZEEEN -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2009, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code") contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules") were

as follows:

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2009

’/;......\
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REEERARES 2 ERR/RKA

RZZZNFAA=Z+H KRB EERE
BITBRABRARARSEMMEEEZE (FER
Br LB G ([EHBER) EXVE) &
MALF ARz EEIEE LR REELRHE
{EBIE3526FE 2 22 R - BERH RE
R BRRAR  ARBHZMES LTHA
([EMHRA)) 2 EMRAEFETEERFE
ESF A (MEAESFA)) BERAR A R AR
EOT

R-BENFANRZ+HZAASREE
0.108 T2 EER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BEREREZERARGEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
EEnE PN £ EEER XERER HfrfEs
Mr HUI Sai Chung FFERE A Long positions 2% 14971,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FFENEE  Long positions 1 & 16,958,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BFEEZ T Long positions 1z 1,423,000 — — (c)
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F.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In
addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai
Chung. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 30,834 and 5 class A non-

convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow
Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000

shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI
Kwok Kwong. Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible

redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held

196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2009, are as follows:

EERBETRAEBRAAAREEM
HBEERARES 2 BER/FKA

(%)

PEE

(a)

(b)

Z %W P 2 196,721,5008% /3 & Good
Benefit Limited([Good Benefit]) #74 °
Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win]) # % Good
Benefit B M+ RAZ—#z= (i) < It
&b 6,000,000/ A% 17 H Ever WinE##58 -

Ever WinZ R E B 107t 2 & A% 750,000/
Rt B ERE  THREIARERESS
A B Ever Win AGETE BT KR A EE
B 5L R%30,8340% K 5%

Z % KB 2 196,721,5000% T
Good Benefit# & ° Evergrow Company
Limited ([Evergrow]) # % Good Benefit B
S 2 W + B OB — B =
(B &E(c) o sk 4N+ 2,082,000 B 17 e
EvergrowE i E °

Evergrow® I FI B 107T 2 & 8 % £950,000
BRAFEALEERE - FEXTESEE
Evergrow A%Rf F & 1 0] K 34 A & 8118 £ IR
30,8230 ©

T =K Good Benefit(R-ZZEZENEF
NA=ZTBEEBRRQTI96,721,5000 % (7)
WAz EZERMT

Number Percentage

Name of Directors of shares of holding
EEpg RAEHE BRAES N
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eludi b 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B & 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBR L 80 0.8%
Others Hih 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

As at 30th June 2009, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred shares in
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted to Ngai Hing

(International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred shares.

’/;......\
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HBEZERARESFZERR/BXR

(%)

RZEZNEFRAZTH TIHESHEAERAZE
RHERAREBREEELTROER - MEZ AT
£ # T Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited
AEE P ERRERERD 2 BAE -

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FEERERELEROHA
Personal Other
Name of Directors interests interests
ExnH 1B A FE 5 Hito s
Mr HUI Sai Chung ERuesAe 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong PRI 200,000 50,000 (ii)

Notes:
(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2009, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(i)  ZERMHAEver WiniE -

(i)  ZEMR{HEvergrowsFE ©
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Report of the Directors
EEESRE

F.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed "“Share Options” above,

(@) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2009, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been
notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

chief executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the vyear.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 23%

Five largest suppliers combined 55%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
is less than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2009 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu
Lung. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters including a review of the annual financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 2009 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EESHRE

/

AUDITOR B

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires AUBBRREAEERKEGHMEBIE

and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. %o ZRBMEWERENCERBEERE
H% o

On behalf of the Board REEFE

HUI Sai Chung IE

Chairman Frit iR

Hong Kong, 25th September 2009 BE —ZEEAFAAZTERHA
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management
throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises
on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance

principles and structures.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout year ended 30th June 2009, except for deviation of the

code provisions A.2.1 and A4.| of the Code as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Board has not appointed an individual to the
post of chief executive officer. The roles of the chief executive officer have been
performed collectively by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all
executive directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company's policies and strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review
the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual to chief

executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Code Provision A4.| stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company's independent non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all directors and all directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the

year.
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The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors. The Board conducts meetings
on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the
year, the Board held a total of five regular board meetings and four ad-hoc board

meetings. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out

ARAMESEABDENRONER  ME
PHTEFEFRTESNAES TRIFSE
EZeNEHIEEBRERAR AL A
BTER RER EFEAABRTIREY
ESgea R IREHESSEE - E5S4

below: RERESHREFBOT
No. of No. of
regular ad-hoc
Attendants meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance
5l
HE & flegry HERH SBR ¥ HERY
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AL E (FE) 5 5 4 4
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong Bl T A 5 5 4 4
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (BIEEHREFLLIE)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BFEET 5 4 4 4
Mr LAl Kam Wah RIBERE 5 5 4 4
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL 5 5 4 4
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul AREExLE 5 5 0
Mr FONG Pong Hing I HBEEE 5 3 4 0
(Resigned on 9th February 2009) (RZZEZNFE_ANBEE)
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikBEL & 5 5 4 0
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngE LA 5 |

(Appointed on 9th February 2009)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the
Board and has met the recommended practice under the Code to have at least
one-third of its members comprising independent non-executive directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise. The biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 to 5 to the annual report, which demonstrates a

diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the definition of the

Listing Rules.

*  To establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and

set the objectives of the management;

*  To approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

*  To decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

*  To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

The Members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of
the Company and of the Group.The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30th June 2009, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th
June 2009, the Members of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies
and, apart from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2009,
have applied them consistently with previous financial periods. Judgments and
estimates have been made that are prudent and reasonable.The reporting

responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 39 to 40.
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The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The nomination of new directors
has been delegated to the Chairman and other executive directors. They review
regularly the need to appoint additional directors with appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience. The Board will then consider the appointment

of the candidates nominated by them as directors of the Company.

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
consists of all independent non-executive directors. The composition and attendance

record of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Attendants
HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEERE (ZESEE)

Mr FONG Pong Hing I HBEEE

(Resigned on 9th February 2009) (RZZEZNFE_ANBEE)
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRkEEE
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngE LA

(Appointed on 9th February 2009)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to

maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main

duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature

and scope of the audit;

2008 / 2009 Annual Report
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(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to

the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements; and

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters

the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management

where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2009, the Audit Committee met three times during

the year, in particular, to review and discuss the followings:

*  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

*  the appointment of external auditor;

*  the establishment of internal control system; and

. the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Auditors and

all senior staff of the Group.
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The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee which stated clearly its authorities and duties in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors and an executive director. The composition

and attendance record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Attendants
HEE
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Chairman) AEExRE (FE)
Mr FONG Pong Hing 7 HEEE
(Resigned on 9th February 2009) (RZZEZNFE_ANBEE)
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRkEEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung Bty
Mr CHING Yu Lung RS A
(Appointed on 9th February 2009) (RZEENF_ANBEZF)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance and
review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The remuneration

committee held one meeting during the year ended 30th June 2009.
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During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

RER - AREZBEEZRKE G ER
PR 2 B NFBRRT - MARARELE
BEENREMZABERDT -

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RAEERME 2 BZRE 1,338,000
Non-audit services including: FEZRBEE

— review of interim results —ERPHER 235,000
— taxation services for the Group - RAEERME 2 RERE 238,000

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEERFERELHZETER
annual results announcement 12,000
Total wE 1,823,000

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for
reviewing its effectiveness.The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct
independent internal review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.
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The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company’s corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. The Company's
website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number
by which enquiries may be put to the Company. Constantly being updated in a
timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the Group's

business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a

high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in all
circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in
the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board
attends the Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results
are advertised in newspapers on the following day and are posted on the

Company's corporate website shortly after the meetings.

@ 2008 / 2009 Annual Report

AEEEAZEERARE  BREERARE
BEEATFHRENZAMABAEHNRE
EROAFERENPHREL X T 2R
B RAD A S B Uhttp://www.nhh.com.hk

ARBEAE  ERASEUBTIHAARTREE
AMER U - BEMI  EERBENERR

o BN EERENEN  YRHAEEE
BED 2 BIVER -

ARAZBEBRRHFERRAE - AERER
EHREAY - RERREEAREN RN E

= o
T~

ARAENKEEATRROBE (ERARAF
MBRRAEBE) ABIIARES AR RNE
o BERRERAZER - ARRE RIS R
RURETARRFE LHRUREREER
XHNHRTE EFEHRRRBFASHEER
AR RABREZARBETE - TEX
SERENARBNARABYE -



PRICEWVATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKESTSHH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 41 to 37, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2009 and of the
Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25th September 2009
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance income

Finance costs

Finance costs — net
(Loss)/profit before taxation

Taxation
(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Dividends

(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/
profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company during the year
(expressed in HK cent per share)

— Basic

— Diluted

The notes on pages 49 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 30th June 2009 BE=EZNFAA=TALFE

Note
BiE

c© oo N o

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
1,129,930 | 580,225
(1,019,313) (1,440,476)
110,617 139,749
2,927 2,899
(4,141) 27,018
(35,487) (42,584)
(79,170) (84,285)
(5,254) 42,797
230 397
(7,472) (11,221
(7,242) (10,824)
(12,496) 31973
(5,884) (1,294)
(18,380) 30,679
(20,757) 24,193
2377 6,486
(18,380) 30,679
— 7,384

(5.62) 6.64
(5.62) 6.64

FAZBTANME GV BRRNEER
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As at 30th June 2009 R=ZEZEAEA~B=1H

2009 2008
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i &E TR TET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRE 16 97,991 106,700
Leasehold land and land use rights ME T o + P A 17 15,998 16,446
Investment properties REME 18 25,430 24,720
Intangible assets B EE 19 2,400 3,200
Available-for-sale financial assets JRHERHEE 20 850 2,000
Deposits for acquisition of properties WEME RS 11,025 8,125
Deferred tax assets EENIBE E 30 8,386 5618
162,080 166,809
Current assets MBEE
Inventories FE 22 156,605 204,362
Trade and bills receivables BEIRKR R ERER 23 170,469 293,799
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HiEU o - BNREERS 9,034 16,429
Tax recoverable QEEEAE 2,338 2,876
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 24 862 1,274
Cash and cash equivalents RekReER 25 90,652 78,882
429,960 597,622
Total assets BEE 592,040 764,431
EQUITY Bo
Capital and reserves attributable to the NERFREERA R EE
Company's equity holders
Share capital LN 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium R 5 B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hfth 28 45,260 51,024
Retained earnings RE & 28 232,229 250,297
376,875 400,707
Minority interests DR R = 19,348 17,397
Total equity e 396,223 418,104
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As at 30th June 2009 R=ZZENE~B=1H

2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b FET FHT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FnRBAE
Long-term bank loans RBRITERN 29 — 6,523
Obligations under finance leases MEMERME 29 693 2,743
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBRAE 30 4,155 2,680
4,848 11,946
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade payables B IR 26 63,962 104,207
Other payables, accruals and Hih R - BRREAR
deposits received BlET € 15,660 22,050
Current portion of long-term REIIRTT
bank loans B —ENER D 29 — 2,000
Obligations under finance leases — MEMEEE - AEBG
current portion 29 2,047 2,764
Short-term borrowings MHEEE 29 98,971 199,956
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA 24 4,742 352
Tax payable 18 5,587 3,052
190,969 334,38l
Total liabilities BEE 195,817 346,327
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 592,040 764,43
Net current assets ERBEE 238,991 263,241
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDEE 401,071 430,050

On behalf of the Board REEFE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
TR BlEEREFHEE

A FFEK

The notes on pages 49 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FAF1ITENMTRGE A BRENER

statements. e
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As at 30th June 2009 R=ZEZEAEA~B=1H

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company's equity holders
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

Retained earnings
Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Other payables
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung
Chairman

E:

A i 5A

The notes on pages 49 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Note
Liks3

BE
ERBEE
MEARKE 21

MEEE

NGRS 21
H fth & Wi 5k

RekReER 25

BEE

Ein
DRBREEBRA R R

>+

R 27
R 5 B 27
Hfth 28
R R 28

HUI Kwok Kwong

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
BT EREFREE

FFEA

2009
HK$°000
TET

62,711

105,760
114
38

105,912

168,623

36,920
62,466
62,803

5,898

168,087

536

168,623
105,376

168,087

2008
HK$'000
THET

62,711

109,669
123
145

109,937

172,648

36,920
62,466
68,986

3,793

172,165

483

172,648
109,454

172,165

FAE1ITENM T AGE VB RREED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEmEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2009 BZE—FENFNA=FHILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRRELESS
Other reserves
Afbie
Share Exchange
Share Share  option  Capital Revaluation fluctuation  Retained  Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings interests Total
BRE EX 5y

Bx BARE  RE EXBRE EGGR KDRE REEN RRE: 48
HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKP000  HKPOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$00D  HKS000
TEn ThEn Thr TEn TEr TEnr TEn TEr  TEn

At It July 2007 R-ZR+ErA-H 36000 57611 7,021 408 05 15070 23339% 7444 359,065
Currency translation differences EiEE - - - — 9% = %5l
Net income recognised ERRRERENNE
directly in equity = = = = —  269% = 265 221
Profit for the year RERT = - - - - - UIRN 6486 30679
Total recognised income WALE = = = = — 2696 419 6,751 57,900
Capital contribution by a PEREINER
minority shareholder = = = = = = = 4 4
Loss written back on disposal HEXK BRER
of a business = = = = = = = 4388 4388
Issuance of new shares R 600 2400 = = = = — — 3,000
Employees share options scheme: ~ EEBRHER 2 -
- proceeds from issuance of shares  —{TEREMRER T
upon exercise of share options R G 300 1,794 = = = = — — 2114
— value of employee services -EERKERE = = 15 = = = = 15
- exercise of share options —ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ% = 66l (661) = = = = = =
200612007 final dividend paid 55/ ZERLEERSRE - - - — — — (3400 —  (3400)
2007/2008 interim dividend paid [f=2%t/-F3\FERERE - - - — - (369 TS
Dividend paid to minorty i‘iﬁﬂ\%ﬁ(ﬁ&%mﬁ%
shareholders — — — — — — — (L190)  (1,19)
920 4855 (546) — — - (79 3@ 1,139
At 30th June 2008 R=ZENF/ A=TH 36920 62466 6475 408 NS 406 20297 17397 418104

The notes on pages 49 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial AR 13THMH T AL A MR E K

statements. 3o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEREER

For the year ended 30th June 2009 ELZ=FFNFNA=1HILF)

b

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARREESS
Other reserves
Afe
Share Exchange
Share Share  option  Capital Revaluation fluctuation ~ Retained  Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings interests Total
RRE EX 5%

Bx B#iE  RE EXEBRE EGERG KBRR REEN RRE: 48
HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKP000  HKPOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$00D  HKS000
TEn ThEn TEr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEr  TEn

At Ist July 2008 RZFENFLA-H 36920 62466 6475 408 L 42026 250297 17397 418104
Net income recognised ERERERENNE

directly in equity = = = = = = = = =
Release on liquidation of a subsidiary R —HEA A& X REL — — — - - 419 - = 419
(Loss)/profit for the year A5 (BB) /7 — - - — - — Q0757 2377 (18380)
Total recognised income WABE = = = = = 419 (20757) 2377 (179%1)

Capitalsation of loans from minority ~ PEREEREA(

shareholders — — — — — = = 1,000 1,000
Employees share options scheme: EEEREND

~ value of employee services -EERKERE — - 198 - - - - = 198

~ lapse of share options -BREL — — (638 — — — 438 - -

200712008 final dividend paid M55t/ ZFEN\EERTRE - - — — — — (369 — (369

Dividend paid to minority shareholders 3 ff F D8RR 2 RS — — — — - - — (148 (1429)

— — (I8 — — — 2689 4) (3920

At 30th June 2009 RZZENEAAZTH 36920 62466 9 08 215 45 B9 19348 396203

The notes on pages 49 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FAOE137ENM T AT B R ELES

jN=)

statements. 3o
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
PRC income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an investment property

Payment for intangible assets
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Deposits for acquisition of properties

Proceeds from disposal of a business
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Issuance of new shares
New bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans
Repayment of capital element of finance leases
Interest element of finance lease payments
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder
Dividend paid to minority shareholders
Dividends paid
Interest received

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated

from financing activities

For the year ended 30th June 2009 BZE=FENFNA=1THIFE

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Fiiax TER THET
REXBIBEN
REXBMEEZRSE 3 147,706 9,389
EHEBENEH (1,779) (3,114)
EHTEMEH (2,325) (5,274)
REXBMESE 2 ERE 143,602 1,001
REXBZHER
BEME  BELEE (4,589) (7,797)
BEEE TR T AR — (1,330)
HEME - BERRERER
3 292 93
HEREBMEMBER — 1,600
BERVEE — (2,000)
BEAHHNENKEE — (2,000)
WEME 2 ZEEM (2,900) (1,875)
HEEBAREH — 3,725
REXBMER 2 ERS (7,197) (9,584)
REXBZRER
BITHR — 5114
i RITER 43,502 57,465
BRFTER (68,028) (46,204)
ERBEERZ (BRD) /& (84,982) 23,733
BEREHEBEARB M (2,767) (5,740)
BMEHEEMNEH M (129) (409)
PERFFAER — 4
X FLEMBRE 2R S (1,426) (1,190)
R E (3,692) (7,292)
B S 230 397
ERRITEENE (7,343) (10812)
REEBH (ER) /
EXZFHE (124,635) 15,066

The notes on pages 49 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FLOF13TENMT BT E M RER N EEL

statements.

{/'\ ®
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
:-V\éiﬁﬁiﬂtb% X

For the year ended 30th June 2009 HZ=FENFNA=THIFE

2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i & T#n TET
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BekReFREM 11,770 6483
Cash and cash equivalents at FOZReRHAEER
beginning of the year 25 78,882 68,471
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEHBMErHE = 3928
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZACRACEE 25 90,652 78,882
The notes on pages 49 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FAOE1ITERME ARG M BREMERR
ANEPS
statements. f
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

HMI |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th September 2009.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.

ARRRBREZMz —HEAERAEE
X B o 7 Al E e 4k & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda °

ARBZBEERBERARZMAER
AAZEREM °

FRIFC AN - K a B BIRE TN
BB - AEAMBHRRER-_ZF
NEARZTHRREEREE -

TXHARRLEVBERRAFN 2T
SR - BRFEREME  UFBRR
ERZIIZHAAFEERRA

2.1 HGREE
ARANGEMBREEREESS
HBREENRE - R BHREX
ERRELRNERE - WHER
TEIIGENEEHERENSE - T#
HENBEERERATEEBER
AERNMBEENGM AR (BT
AT H)MELER -

AR BB ER B REEANME B
BRRFBEERETHREAHE -
ENREEEEARAARENE
ATBRBEPITEEAE - P RH
EWHE R EERENEE - %
B REEEBERRBEXREM
BENEE - EHE4TRE -
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1 HREE(E)

The following amendments and interpretations to existing standards are BE_ZTNEAA=THLHF
mandatory for the financial year ended 30th June 2009: B UTERIZETRZEE R
EA
Hong Kong Accounting Standard Reclassification of Financial Assets
("HKAS") 39 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
BErR e ENENR K HHEEENEHN IR

BEMBRERAETR (BTX)

Hong Kong International Financial Embedded Derivatives

Reporting Interpretations Committee

(“HK(FRIC)")-Int 9 and HKAS 39

(Amendments)
Bk (BERUBEERBREE) AEITETA
—REBFIRREE G EAFINN
(&1 %)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
B (AR EREREREE)— PR AT Z B
2EF125
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
B (ERUERERERES) ReEPEEE
—2EE135%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction
B (ERAEREREZES) BRGHENE19R—RATBMNEERTE REESBREMERERAR
—2RBE 145
The adoption of these amendments and interpretations to existing KA FERBIZ BT RBBYERE
standards did not have a significant financial impact on the results and EimEARE -

financial position of the Group.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The following new standard, amendments to standards and

interpretations have been issued but are not effective and have not been

early adopted.

HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZREBEEMB]RE LR (BTX)
HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZRBEBVHREER (BFTX)
HKAS | (Revised)
BB GRS (BEF)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
B ERHRAE235% (KT
HKAS 27 (Revised)
BERGTERNE27F (REFT)
HKAS 32 and
HKAS | (Amendments)
BB G ERE2HEREF (BT A)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
BB Gt ERE39H (BRI F)
HKFRS | (Revised)
ERM G REERF 5% (EER)
HKFRS | and HKAS 27
(Amendments)
BRPBREEUF IR
EEGTENE27F (BTF)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
ERM G REERF25% (BT X)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BN G ERE35% (K EET)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BB REEETR (BT X)
HKFRS 8
BB B RE ERF8H

2.1 FREE(E)
IR E A2 HER - 82 5]
RBBEFEMRARIARES -

Improvements to HKFRS 2008*

2008F LB M A2 2

Improvements to HKFRS 2009°

20095 LB E MG RE E R 2 B

Presentation of Financial Statements'

HBEHRRN 2T

Borrowing Costs'

fEE A

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'

Fe B M BERR

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation'

BRAEANTEHESRIARAME

Eligible Hedged Items'

AEBEFERER"

First-time Adoption of HKFRS'

BREME MG REEA

Cost of Investments in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entities or Associates'

MEAR - KFEEHEBRBZ DA KA

Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

SRR S5 2 SROB Y 57 I8 1R 1 B Rt 3"

Business Combinations'

ES =L

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments'

ERIA  RENEAHERIAZEE

Operating Segments'
M3 A S0
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1 REREZE(E)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate!
EFr (BRUBEHRERELEE) FHERRHZ

—2EF 165
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation'
e (BRUHERERBLES) BINRI R B BB

—2EE16H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'
e (BRUBERERELES) MEBEADRIFREEE'

—RBE 7R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers?
e (BRUBERERELEE) BRPEREE

—RBE18%

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2009 except
for the amendment to HKFRS 5, “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” which is effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on Ist July 2010.

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on |st July 2009
Effective for transfer of assets from customers received on or after st July
2009

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2010 except
for the amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38 , HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 which are effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on st July 2009

The effect that the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised)
and HK(IFRIC)-Int |7 will have on the results and financial position of the
Group will depend on the incidence and timing of business combinations
occurring on or after Ist July 2009. The Directors anticipate that the
adoption of other new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations will not result in a significant impact on the results and

financial position of the Group.

@ 2008 / 2009 Annual Report
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2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (note 2.9). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

2.2 HE

%

Il

RH
BEMBRREBEARAREMRE

WBARBENA=THIZ2H#H%
HE -

(a)

/8 2 Al
NASBERFEEMBERE
BHE  —MRINEEBFEUA
IREEZRENMEES -
HEMBAR - ENEARE
EREHS—BEE - BAd
TREAA AN BERZED
RERTEHTER -

WEARAERHEEBEEAK
BEREEKS AR LHEE
HEXKLEBERELEAA
E\E o

SRARARRNRS « R5E
SRR ER W T IAHEH - R
ERERTTAHE RS
EZEERECRETR
WERARNEHRRENES
PHEBRELLBER - LA
REXEERBOSTHBRER—
5 o

EAXADRIZEERERA R
fif B A Rl 2 B TR A E R
R RERETR (K
2.9) -MBARZFEHAR
AR MR AR B AR
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2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(b)  Transactions with minority interests
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses for the
Group that are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

2.3 Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

2008 / 2009 Annual Report
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(9

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate

component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part

of the gain or loss on sale.

24 SEBE(E)

(c)

FEETRA
AEBETHEER (285
FRAGAREERANE
B 0T BE 5 W 1 A B DI BR
B HXBRMBARAR
MIAARRARIEER

i) BEEREXMINE
ENBBRZEERRE
KA B R mE &

=
A

(i) HHeamRA I ERA B
XHBRFHERAE
fRIFUL T E R AR N
AEMBRRRR A
MEREXMRF
£ EUBERT KA
RxH#ER 5 A 88
ExHE R

(i) FAEBEELNERE
BEASERN S
MAKER -

ERaRER  RBEBIHNE
BIFRBMELECERAZR
BFIARBRELR - EHE—A
BINEBR  ZEEXEZER
BRNERBARHERE

—#5 -

2008 / 2009 Annual Report @



2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

—  Buildings 2% - 2.5%

—  Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term and 20%

- Machinery and equipment 12.5%
—  Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
—  Motor vehicles 20%
- Tools and moulds 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as

described above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
29).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried
at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains/losses.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis

over the period of leases.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The

operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Cont'd)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined annually by
independent external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values

are recorded in the income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives

of five years.
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2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the income statement.
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2.10 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every

reporting date.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to

be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. They are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include trade and other

receivables and bank balances.

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months

of the balance sheet date.
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2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement
within “other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary security are recognised in the
income statement; translation differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-

monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
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2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income

statement when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If
the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in
the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through

the income statement.
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2.11

2.12

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement within

other gains/losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against administrative

expenses in the income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
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2.15

2.16

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is any contract
that does not meet the definition of financial liability and evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period

of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the balance sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.

215 (I EERER

AEEETCHBAERERTA
BRANZEIBRERRBHR
ERESTA -HBERE (Pjﬁ“”
BN ERANTFERE - HE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ‘*'J,%'\E>£T¢z?§ﬁﬁéﬂz$a+
cBETAREMARONTAH
i“ﬁ%ﬁ’]i%&ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬂﬁrﬁzﬁi
BB AERERNSRES

TREDBAES BTHRKE
P 2 B A PR HIRR B T 9 5 M
HERRES TR o

2.16 B

ERNFRAFELINREENR
BRATER - ERERREHN A
JER R R BKA) B
EEENEAZENBERMN SR
REFHEANERERER

2.17 BERX

E& Eﬂ/\éﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁiéﬁk$ﬁ
EREERBREMREREMT
FBOHRBEER - Fﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%%
RARELBEF ARER °

2008 / 2009 Annual Report



2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the related tax

is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the places
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.19 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions once the contributions have

been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the
Group's and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$ 1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately

vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in The People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"). Contributions are made by the Group on a monthly basis
to these state-sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage
of the relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired

employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited
by those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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2.19 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium when the options are exercised.

2008 / 2009 Annual Report

219 ESEEF (£)

(b)

(c)

EERY#EZ
BEFR<EFNNEREZA
FiER - AR EREE A RE
BRUERGMER ZFRET
B - BEZARBREDBRERE
MEWR - EEEE EAKR
Lk e

LR BEEZ BMEF
AEELEURESZ TG
REN TR o LUK BRI
AT EREREATETER
ARAX - ERBHN  AXE
FH2EMRLBREZ AT
ERET  fEFLTRETR
AHBzEBGRE (GImEF
EARBERRAE) - 77
FEZBBRETIIAESRE
%ﬁﬁZ%%%%a%Zﬁ
cMEH#ER BRERE
@ﬂ%ﬂﬁZ%h%@@°%
RRER2ZE (E) TR
mRNHER - MAEAZARN
BaRhEa -

BIERITRER - RBER
IRERE R ERKEA
B (EEEn) REAEE -



2.19 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(d)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.21 Leases

0

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of

the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current liabilities. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.
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2.22

2.23

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in the income statement over the period of the relevant
liabilities and (i) the amount of which the Group is obligated to

reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(iii)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.
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2.24 Dividend distribution

3.1

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final dividend

and board of directors for interim dividend.

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD™), Renminbi
(“RMB") and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to USD and

RMB.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(a)  Foreign exchange risk (Contd)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th
June 2009, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars, details of
which have been disclosed in note 24. Certain of the Group'’s
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables and borrowings
were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have

been disclosed in notes 23, 25, 26 and 29.

At 30th June 2009, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against other foreign currencies, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would have been HK$2,969,000
(2008: HK$2,078,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currency-
denominated financial assets and liabilities. The Directors however
are of the opinion that any changes in fair value of the Group's
forward foreign exchange contracts, as a result of any reasonable
changes in exchange rate between HK dollar and US dollar as at
30th June 2008 and 2009, would have no significant financial impact
to the Group.
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3.1 BBEREBEZE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)

independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details
of which are disclosed in note 25.The Group's exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of
which are disclosed in note 29. Borrowings carry at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those
carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate

risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The Group also uses certain
financial derivatives to manage its interest rate risk, details of which

have been disclosed in note 24.

As at 30th June 2009, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$438,000 (2008: HK$158,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on cash at
bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings. However, the effect on the changes in fair value of the
Group's interest rate swap contracts, as a result of any reasonable
changes in interest rates as at 30th June 2009, would have intended

to set off these financial impacts to the Group.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(9

()

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to

determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and
available-for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all
derivatives financial instruments are also entered into with these
financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution and management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these

counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. As at 30th June 2009, the Group also made certain

deposits for acquisition of properties.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables (including deposits made) based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made in these consolidated
financial statements. The Directors are also of the opinion that
deposits are made to credit worthy parties and do not expect non-

performance of the counter-parties.

At 30th June 2009, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$70,709,000 (2008: HK$175,471,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group'’s primary cash requirements have been for additions of
and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure of
the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group.
The Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and
committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements
in the ordinary course of business. As at 30th June 2009, the total
banking facilities made available to the Group amounting to
HK$338,255,000 (2008: HK$298,089,000) of which HK$99,196,000
(2008: HK$203,423,000) was being utilised by the Group.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)
(e) Liquidity risk (Contd)

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial

liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance

sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow based on

the earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be

required to pay.

Group

At 30th June 2009

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings

Obligations under finance leases

Derivatives financial instruments

Total

At 30th June 2008

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings

Obligations under finance leases

Derivatives financial instruments

Total
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Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Within
| year
—FR
HK$'000
TAT
Company N
At 30th June 2009 R-ZZ2ZAEXA=1H
Other payables H e 3K 536
At 30th June 2008 R-BE\EXA=+A
Other payables Hfth e 5% 483

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and make adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments

to shareholders, issue new shares or to obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (include current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.
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Capital risk management (Cont'd)
The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June

2009 and 2008:

Total borrowings (note 29) mgs (fisr 29)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) A, :

Net debt BFFE
Total equity R

Total capital LR N
Gearing ratio EXREBRELE

The decrease in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2009 was
mainly resulted from the decrease in the total borrowings during the

year.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable, derivative financial
instruments, and deposits and other receivables, and the Group's current
financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and accruals,
current borrowings and derivative financial instruments, approximate

their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask

price.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Contd)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt and interest rate swaps. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted

forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of financial assets
and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the

Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.
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(9)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from use of these assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful lives or
residual values vary with previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and

therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and

estimates.
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(b)

(9

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may

be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on
the basis of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after
allowing for outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. These methodologies are based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future
leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in

respect of the property.

(b)

(c)
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(e)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. Provisions are made where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of the
receivables and impairment is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based on
an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-
downs on inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the value of the inventories may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.
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(M

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax charges in the

period in which such estimates have been changed.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings; its subsidiaries

are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic materials,

pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products. Revenue recognised for the year is as follows:

Turnover S
Sale of goods HE S m

(f) AR REERE
TEBAGMZ EREEROMSE
Bio BERAZERNAEHERE
B BIELAE - EAREBTE
ETRERERKHRBAOR S KA
B HAEEENRERBEERE
R - AIEHER

SYEETARABENRNMER

_H

ERERERNEBRARL
FIEHEEREEBRARBAR
AE L B FE AR 4 N A P 1R 2K 8
ERZEIBEBEMER
%Z RERERAAER
RIZERRERERREZH
FMAZEETHEREE CBAKR
FISHER -

Sz
=

X at
Waﬂﬁﬂ

JiliS

m
e

ARAIEBERBR/REER  AMEL
AIZEEXBREBRN €5 56
B RMMIBEHIHEREE - &
FEERZREWT
Group
%8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TRET
1,129,930 1,580,225
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An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year ended 30th June

2009 by geographical segment is as follows:

Turnover
— Gross segment

— Inter-segment

Segment results

Unallocated costs
Finance income

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss for the year

Minority interests

Loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company

2008 / 2009 Annual Report

Hong Kong
B8
HK$°000
TERT
=t
— D EARHE 872,645
— D EBEHE (89,898)
782,747
DEEE (16,554)
RO B
gL
MBER
BREIAIEE
A
FRbiiz B8
PERERER

RERREMLER

-3

—=< =

S

2009
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
FE
(TBREEFRE)
HK$’000
TER

373,805

(26,622)

347,183

15,372

NERA=ZTHLEFERE
BrERBRFERMBONNOT

Group

&8
HK$’000
FHER

1,246,450

(116,520)

1,129,930

(1,182)

(4,072)
230
(7,472)

(12,496)
(5,884)

(18,380)
(2,377)

(20,757)



The segment assets and liabilities at 30th June 2009 and other segment

information for the year ended are as follows:

Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Borrowings

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of leasehold
land and land use rights

Amortisation of
intangible assets

Provision for impairment
of receivables

Provision for impairment
of inventories

Loss on liquidation of

a subsidiary

Unrealised loss on derivative REBR{TA S/l T EEE

financial instruments

pa] g
=

o 8 1%

o R

HtpER
BAX
nE - BELRENE

MG 13 R £ b b PR

EIEESE

PR SR E £

FEREERE

IEPNGIEEE SR

mr

Hong Kong

BE
HK$°000
TER

296,632

59,570

3,047

5,308

262

800

874

1,435

419

4,802

R-Z2E

N—= =

2009
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
B
(TBEERE)
HK$’000
TER

283,834

24,258

1,542

7,820

186

1,601

NEANR=THZABEER

Group

%8
HK$’000
5
580,466
11,574

592,040

83,828
101,711
10,278

195,817

4,589

13,128

448

800

874

3,036

419

4,802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5 WERIBEM (&
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year ended 30th June BE-ZT N \F A=THLEFEAXSE
2008 by geographical segment is as follows: BrEXBREGRMBEINMT -
2008
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Group
B
B (TBEEE) £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Turnover =
— Gross segment —DEBIHE 1,246,902 452,552 1,699,454
— Inter-segment — D EEHE (74,130) (45,099) (119,229)
1,172,772 407,453 1,580,225
Segment results DEEAE 28,520 15,746 44,266
Unallocated costs RA B (1,469)
Finance income B ISl 397
Finance costs % E R (11.221)
Profit before taxation B 256 B g A 31,973
Taxation 18 (1,294)
Profit for the year B 258 18 4 A 30,679
Minority interests DER RS (6,486)
Profit attributable to equity /A ) % 5 F& 1k 4 7
holders of the Company 24,193
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5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5
The segment assets and liabilities at 30th June 2008 and other segment

information for the year ended are as follows:

HFEMBRRMEE

KR BES @)
W-BENEAA=TRZABEER
SERBERALEE I HBABER
mT -

2008
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Group
hE
BB (TREEE) £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Segment assets DEEE 419,174 334,763 753937
Unallocated assets AALEE 10,494
Total assets BEE 764,431
Segment liabilities AEEILE 85,152 40,974 126,126
Borrowings BE 213,986
Other unallocated liabilities E AR DB B E 6,215
Total liabilities BAfE 346,327
Other information: Hin&#}
Capital expenditure BEAZH 9,114 4013 13,127
Depreciation of property, ~ ¥1% « BiFE kR ETE
plant and equipment 4,728 10,538 15,266
Amortisation of leasehold 85 1 b Jz 1 {55 FA 4 #8 §4
land and land use rights 228 186 414
Amortisation of B EESH
intangible assets 800 — 800
Provision for impairment FEW R B
of receivables 899 50 949
(Reversal of provision)/ FEREEE (BE) #E
provision for impairment
of inventories (1orn 2,055 1,044
Unrealised loss on derivative RBERITE S BT ABE
financial instruments 50 — 50

Turnover and segment results are presented based on the operating locations

of group companies. Unallocated costs mainly represent corporate expenses.

EXERDBRERRBREBEDAMEM
B8 e ROEKATBEELEHAX -
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All the Group's turnover and operating results are attributable to the
manufacturing and trading of plastic products and accordingly no analysis of
the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating results by business

segment is provided.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights, investment properties, intangible assets, inventories,
deposits, trade and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and cash
and cash equivalents. Unallocated assets mainly comprise tax recoverable,

deferred taxation and available-for-sale financial assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated liabilities mainly

comprise tax payable, deferred taxation and other corporate liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment,

leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets.

Rental income Ha WA

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately

HK$ 189,000 (2008: HK$307,000).
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OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

7 Hit(BR) KE-2E

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR
Fair value gains on investment KREMENRAFEYE (K5 18)
properties (note 18) 710 8,477
Derivative financial instruments THEEmMIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts and —RHEEERBZINE
interest rate swap contracts held for BEHAAORANEREHEH
trading
— unrealised —KREH (4,802) (50)
— realised -2ER 851 2382
Net exchange gains SNEW 669 3,260
Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary fEARAEEER (419) —
Impairment of available-for-sale AMEHEMBEERE (M 20)
financial assets (note 20) (1,150) —
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREYE W= = 443
Gain on disposal of a business (note) HEEBRE (M) = 13,235
Impairment of receivables relating to HEXBHEL
a disposed business e OR B — (729)
(4,141) 27,018
Note: Bt 5
During the year ended 30th June 2008, the Group disposed of certain assets of a REBZE-ZTNF A=THILFE ' A5E
subsidiary, representing a business of the Group (the “Disposed Business”), to certain DA (B43,112,0008 T - HEE-MEBELR
third parties at a consideration of HK$43,112,000. Consequently a gain on disposal of a AZHBABEREB(BELEEK]) TE=
business amounting to HK$ 13,235,000 was recorded for the year. 7o Bt S UL ER 2 Hias 13,235,000
BTERZAFENAR
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Cost of inventories sold excluding
manufacturing costs
Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights (note 17)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 19)
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation:
— Owned property, plant and equipment
— Property, plant and equipment
under finance leases
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Provision for impairment of inventories
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Employee benefit expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (note 14)
Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings
Repairs and maintenance expenses
Transportation and packaging expenses
Travelling and office expenses
Utility expenses

Other expenses

Total costs of sales, distribution costs

and administrative expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

2008 / 2009 Annual Report
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BHRBERY
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ARZ AR
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HERA
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2009
HK$°000
TER

959,425

448

800
1,585

10,677

2,451
874
3,036

(122)

67,285

10,509

4,013
17,370
11,830
10,766
33,023

1,133,970

1,019,313
35,487
79,170

1,133,970

2008
HK$'000
THET

1,370,041

414

800
1,573

12,815

2,451
220
1,044

34

83,080

8,730
4726
22,360
13,573
13,965
31,519

1,567,345

1,440,476
42,584
84,285

1,567,345



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HFEMBRRMEE

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HBWENER
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Finance income: B
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITEFFEBA 230 397
Finance costs: BB :
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly —ERAFANEEEER ZRT
repayable within five years Ep=Pp )N (7,343) (10,812)
— Interest element of finance leases - RERERN SN (129) (409)
(7,472) (11,221)
Finance costs — net B ER - FE (7,242) (10,824)
TAXATION 10 HIE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2008:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's

subsidiaries established and operate in the PRC has been calculated at the

rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

BEMNGSRIREF AL BRUG
BREANZTARR(CRENF: B
DZTARD) AERE PELEMRT
BIRBEASERPEKILREE M
BRACERBRAERE -

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement FalaR s HEXLHR -
represents:
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Current taxation: REFHE -
Hong Kong profits tax BRNEH 2,966 3216
PRC corporate income tax B 1 TS A 4,084 5,267
Under/(over) provision in previous years DEFERETE/ (BEEE) 127 (1,435)
7,177 7,048
Deferred taxation (note 30) BERE (M 30) (1,293) (5,754)
5,884 1,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

10 TAXATION (Contd)

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation differs from the

10 #HE#)

REEFBRTA (BR) RN ZHE

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as HBEERARBCHEMAE 2 EHRB
follows: %Ez%%&ilzn? :
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TERT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B51B) &F (12,496) 31,973
Calculated at a taxation EHE165% (ZTTN\F :
rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 16.5%) stE 2B (2,062) 5276
Effect of different taxation rates in the PRC ~ FETRBE 2 Z & 909 1,106
Income not subject to taxation AR 2 BWA (56) (3.934)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes NAJ 182 X ) 443 614
Tax losses not recognised AER 2 BB EE 4,693 808
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {3 LAfE R RIS E B — (574)
Effect of changes in tax rate MEEE s e — (161
Under/(over) provision in previous years NEEERETR (BEER) 127 (1,435)
Others HAth 1,830 (406)
5,884 1,294

[l (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in

the financial statements of the Company to the extent of losses of
HK$584,000 (2008: profit of HK$6,756,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Interim, paid, of HK$ Nil (2008: HK1.0 cent) B IR HI% 8 &M% 0 &1L
per ordinary share (ZZZNEF - 1.08) = 3,692
Final, proposed, of HK$ Nil BOR R B B B AR 0 &1L
(2008: HK1.0 cent) per (ZZZNEF : 1.0%(l)
ordinary share (note) (BeE) — 3,692
= 7,384
Note: Bz -
At a meeting held on 25th September 2009, the Directors resolved not to declare any RZZZAFNA-THBEETzER L &
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2009 (2008: HKI.0 cent for share, totalling ERRATHEZE_ZTSNGF AT HLESFE
HK$3,692,000). SEREMARARES (ZZENE : 8R1.0%
fili - $£3,692,000%7T) °
At a meeting held on 3rd October 2008, the Directors proposed a final dividend of RZZZ\E+A=ZHRIz8% L EF8
HK1.0 cent per ordinary share. This proposed dividend was not reflected as a dividend FRBERAREER.0BI - HIEFRRS
payable in these financial statements and had been reflected as an appropriation of WERARHBEREFINERATREEEREE
retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 2009. ZEENEAAZTRLEERE Z2RBHEFFH

[
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

I3 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

13

Bk (B8 BF
EX

FREX(BR) /BNDEARBRRE
h(BR) SR AERNERTEER
Z MEFHEEH

2009 2008

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity NRIREEN (BB) /

holders of the Company (HK$'000) wA (FET) (20,757) 24,193
Weighted average number of FREETERRZ

ordinary shares in issue IS & 369,200,000 364,343,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER (&B) /

(HK cents per share) A (ZREW) (5.62) 6.64
Diluted B

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from the Company’s share options.
Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2009 and
2008 equal basic (loss)/earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding

share options would be anti-dilutive.

AEEREE (BB /AFE - EHE
FOTERBRMEFHEHFE - 5
R A SRR N R TRBRIER
TgEh NEE-_TTNFAA=T
BR-_ZZENEAA=THLMESF
B BOfEARTEEREAREEY
2 RAUtMEFE8REE (BB /
BAHEMERER (BR) /BH -

|14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 14 EEEAIH (BREEM2)

EMOLUMENTS)

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

Wages, salaries and other allowances TE& - B R%HE 2R 63,277 79,329

Pension costs L NN 3,810 3,636

Share-based compensation expense PARR 17 32~ 69 B 2 198 [15

67,285 83,080
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(a)  Directors’ emoluments (@) EFHz

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_ZTNERA=THLEE
ended 30th June 2009 is set out below: FUEEMEWT :
Salaries, other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
-
HtR R BTHE BIHERHAS
ESEB e BWA RTA K nE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faus St 650 2,778 — 268 3,696
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ATE KA 650 2,778 _ 268 3,696
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEREL — 2,074 — 108 2,182
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipELs — 2,074 — 70 2,144
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEEXL — 1,469 — 145 1,614
Independent Non- By
Executive Directors EHTES

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul ARELE 150 — — — 150
Mr FONG Pong Hing (note (i)) ~ FHEL4

(B 2E (i) 6l — — — 6l
Mr CHAN Dit Lung FRAkEE L& 100 — — — 100
Mr CHING Yu Lung (note (i)  TRIEEL4

(B 2E (i) 39 — — — 39
Total BE 1,650 11,173 — 859 13,682
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

I5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Contd)

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year

15 EEREEEEABZHME @)

m

@) EBH (H)
BE-PTN\FAASTALER

ended 30th June 2008 is set out below: BUEEZMENT :
Salaries, other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
-
Hi 2R R BITME EIHRAKE
EX4H fikn BN = B EAL R ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL TEL TET TEL
Executive Directors HITES
Mr HUI Sai Chung Pt RE S A 650 2,728 — 262 3,640
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR KL 650 2,728 — 262 3,640
Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony mHFEBTL — 2,004 171 99 2,274
Mr LAl Kam Wah RBELE - 2,004 43 67 2,114
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEEBRT — 1419 22 139 1,580
Independent Non- By
Executive Directors FRTES
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fESEE 150 — — — 150
Mr FONG Pong Hing (note())) A HB&EE4E (M) 100 — — — 100
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikELE 100 — — 100
Total 1,650 10,883 236 829 13,598

No Directors waived any emoluments during the year (2008: HKSNIl).
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office during the year (2008: HK$NIl).

Notes:
(i)  Resigned on 9th February 2009

(i) Appointed on 9th February 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I5 DIRECTORS * AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

for the year include four (2008: four) Directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and

payable to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

HFEMBRRMEE

15 EERGEBEEBEAEZHE &)

(b)

REREHMAL

AEER ERAUESHFEMAL
oA (CERENE  O) RE
2 OEMEER EXEN 22
RE BTN UKSHFMALR

FFEEZEHMEFRBOT

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET

Salaries, other allowances BN - EfhEER R
and benefits in kind EYH = 1,692 1,592
Discretionary bonus IS IEAL — 420
Pension costs RIKE AR 186 159
1,878 2,171

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (2008: HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2008: HK$

Nil).

ALt ZHMEeHEA-BRTET
—BTEABAT(ZTEN: =
BET-BIE_ALtEATZ
HERN - AREVER LRALT (B
REFREAMES) TAMEERR
EMARERREBA BE (T
TNE 8| -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 ¥ - BERRKE

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and and office Motor Tools and
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles moulds Total
il il XER
BF NEEE HIRRE BLAERR fE IARER k|
HKB000  HK$000  HKPOOD  HK$000  HKPOOD  HK$000  HK$000
TR Tin Tin THR Tin TR Tin
Year ended 30th June 2008 RZEENE
NAZTHIEFE
Opening net book amount BIREFE 55,854 1948 40495 2889 | 455 672 103313
Exchange differences EXZES 6,535 144 3897 21 186 10 10,983
Additions £ 900 1290 2007 1,547 1,891 162 7797
Disposalshwrite-off e /#% — — (74) (15) (38) — (127)
Depreciation & (1735) (1045)  (10688) (1.233) (487) (1) (1526)
Closing net book amount BREERE 61,554 2397 35,637 339 3007 766 106,700
At 30th June 2008 RZFENERA=TH
Cost AA 80712 87% 113797 1984l 9811 3686 19661
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (19,158) (649)  (138160)  (I6442) (6804) (2920)  (189.933)
Net book amount KA 61,554 2337 35637 3399 3,007 786 106,700
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Furniture,

Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor  Tools and
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles moulds Total
BE il RBR

BF NERE HERRE BLERR AE IAREA BE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

Year ended 30th June 2009 HEZZINE
AR=THIEE
Opening net book amount BIREFE 61,554 2337 35,637 3399 3007 766 106,700
Additions £ - 1,145 2038 10 8! 305 4,589
Disposalshwrite-off e/ Hi% - - (10) (1) (129) - (170)
Depreciation & (2,106) (988) (8,093) (%41) (890) (110)  (13,128)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 59,448 2494 29,772 2437 2879 %! 97,991
At 30th June 2009 RZEZNENA=TH
Cost KA 80712 9,552 172813 19,59 9,720 3916 296,309
Accumulated depreciation gitig (21,264) (7058)  (143041)  (17,159) (6,841) (2955)  (198318)
Net book amount REFE 59,448 2494 91N 2437 2819 %! 97,991
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(@)

Depreciation expense of HK$9,493,000 (2008: HK$11,927,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$292,000 (2008: HK$225,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,343,000 (2008: HK$3,114,000) in administrative

expenses.

As at 30th June 2009, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$20,067,000 (2008: HK$20,067,000) and
HK$ 11,658,000 (2008: HK$9,207,000) respectively.

As at 30th June 2009, the net book value of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$2 1,165,000 (2008: HK$21,751,000).
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FrEE 9,493,000 T (ZTZTN
F:11,927,00087T) B BEEHE
ERA - 292,0008 T (ZEEN
% : 225,000 T) B BEED HK
AR 3,343,0008 T (ZTTN\F -
3,114,0008 L) EBEETHX
tb' o

RZZBZNENA=1TH  ~£E
BEREHNEREZNE BER
RELKARBZARESFANR
20,067,000 T (ZE T )\ & :
20,067,000/ 7T ) K& 11,658,0007%
T (ZFZT\F ¢ 9,207,000%

o) °

RZZBENERA=1H  F4&E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17 HEXHWRIBERE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid AEERHET MR IMERE 2 #EE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed as follows: REBALEHERE  HREFED
e
Group
£
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At beginning of the year F4 16,446 14,756
Additions 12 — 1,330
Exchange differences EN ER = 774
Amortisation of prepaid BN EHETIE B
operating lease payments (448) (414)
At end of the year FR 15,998 16,446
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
Geographical analysis: B R S - TER FHT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: EEBRBE HELH
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TFEERTEZHE 7,016 7,199
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: FERBIRA 2 i
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTH7HEE 8,982 9,247
15,998 16,446
As at 30th June 2009, the net book value of leasehold land and land use rights RZBEEANFAA=Z+H HELHR
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to 3 F 4 Bk ¥ (B 494,825,000/ T
approximately HK$4,825,000 (2008: HK$4,958,000). (ZFF/\F : 4,958,000 ) B HHEF

BT RAEEBMBRITEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

[8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18 REWE

Group
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
At beginning of the year 14 24,720 17,400
Write off/disposals W/ HE - (1,157)
Fair value gains (note 7) NFEEKE (M 7) 710 8,477
At end of the year FR 25,430 24,720

(@) The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2009 by Chung,
Chan & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer.

Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

(b) As at 30th June 2009, the fair value of investment properties pledged as
security for the Group'’s banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$9,427,000 (2008: HK$9,158,000).

(c) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their book values are

analysed as follows:

AEE2RRENEN_TTNF
NA=+TEARBUEXRMGEMEE

TREEEBRTSENERERE
%o
R-ZZTZNFRA=TRH REY

¥REFEL9,427,0008 T (=&
Z )\ :9,158,00047T) DM T
RIT BAEBERMBRITEE -

AEEREENME 2 EE 2 REE
DM

Group
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHEE 25,430 24,720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa M BRRMEE
I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 18 REYX (B)
(d) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (d) BREFITHENLCEHE  KR&
operating leases are as follows: EEKEERENT :
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
Not later than one year —FR 1,417 1,312
Later than one year and —FREPERAF
not later than five years 642 107
2,059 1419
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BREE
Technical know-how Bl A
Group
%8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Opening net book amount H9ERmE 3 E 3,200 —
Additions Pl — 4,000
Amortisation 3] (800) (800)
Closing net book amount HAREEFE 2,400 3,200
Cost ZEN 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation B 3 (1,600) (800)
Net book amount REHE 2,400 3,200
Amortisation of the Group's technical know-how has been included in cost of AEBRMAB s BHEOFEHEK
sales. Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

20 AHHEMBEE

Group

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

At lst July KtA—H 2,000 —

Addition 2 = 2,000

Impairment charge RIE X H (1,150) -

At 30th June RAR=1H 850 2,000
Available-for-sale financial assets represent a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted AHEEHBEERERNERBRE L&

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated
in HK dollar.

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

BaMzkELMRRZAD 2 =#iNE

% WAENBTBEL -

21 BUHMBLARARKKEBLARRE

a) KEBARIKE

Company
NG
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRG - BEAR 62,711 62,711

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June

2009 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

The amounts are mainly denominated in HK dollar.
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Trading stocks BEEBER
Raw materials R
Finished goods SUpK an

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in
the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately

HK$1,016,277,000 (2008: HK$ 1,439,432,000).

Net write-down of inventories amounted to HK$3,036,000 for the year (2008:
HK$ 1,044,000, representing provision for impairment of HK$2,055,000 and
reversal of provision for impairment of HK$1,011,000), which have been

included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

Inventories amounting to HK$55,469,000 (2008: HK$140,451,000) were held

under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (note 29).

Group

&8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
63,628 84,066
72,013 87,875
20,964 32,421
156,605 204,362

RZEWRERAEER AP REREFH
S ZHEERAA L4 51,016,277,0007%
T (ZZEZE/)\F : 1,439,432,000%7T) °

A& BB F583,036,0008 L (ZFF
J\E :1,044,0008 T © KRERREEE
2,055,000% 7T & B B % & & [
1,011,000 T) 2 FERELEE - TR
RERERNHERRPAR -

A $£ 55,469,000 L (Z T TN F -
140,451,0008 70) 2 17 E R E ST HIE
RITER 2L HHEE (B:329) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRMEE
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 BEZRURREKRE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Trade receivables EE Y LGN 156,766 271,369
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EGEORE R (3,617) (2,824)
153,149 268,545
Bills receivable e 17,320 25,254
170,469 293,799
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following BORRFOEEENTIERRE
currencies: fi
Group
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
HK dollar BT 60,132 165,615
Renminbi AR 65,202 83,673
US dollar X 31,432 22,081
156,766 271,369
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. BHREF RAERE QA TERD -
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as HRAEERFEAEBZEFR  FMUE
the Group has a large number of customers. SRNFITEEERNET ZAR -
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The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

Below 90 days 0—90H
91-180 days 91 — 180 H
Over 180 days #8180 A

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default

rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.

As of 30th June 2009, trade receivables of HK$54,665,000 (2008:
HK$84,171,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Past due by 160 57

1-30 days 1=80E

31-60 days 31— 60 B
Over 60 days #8860 A

AEBERHBHHERNETHRI0ZE0
B HRNEAMRIARRES X #E
T -BHRERREZA 2RO
T

Group

%8
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR
137,474 241,097
8,542 19,650
10,750 10,622
156,766 271,369
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂzﬁﬁ’]m%ﬁﬂkmﬁ’ﬂ*,m

ERBBLEERY AR ENBE
ﬁﬂ TRE - BBEZHABAEYES
KIER o

Hﬂﬂ

EENFEANA=1TH BZERUK
54,665,000;% T(ZZZ N\ &F:
84,171,000 70) &£ 2 @ B W R (B -

LERBE RS ERKIRBEHERERT
BOBIEP - LEEHERNROKEK
AT

Group
%8

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
34,099 51,394
8,483 16,472
12,083 16,305
54,665 84,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBMRMEE

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

As of 30th June 2009, trade receivables of HK$3,617,000 (2008:
HK$2,824,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$3,617,000
(2008: HK$2,824,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate

to a number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult

economic situations. These trade receivables have been past due by more than

60 days.

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group

23 BEERARRERRE (¢

;H‘];—}

RZZENESR= +E ﬁ%ﬁ%m
3,617,000 T (ZTZT/\5: 2,824,000
BT EERE - RZZEZAFA A=T
A EESEE3617,0008L(ZSF
N\F: 2,824,00087T) © ERIHENE
SREBREERBERNBR AIMEER
RHNBUEP - WERKHKEBHE
B60R °

AEEZBEZERFAERGES N

is as follows: I
Group

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
At beginning of the year 14 2,824 1,734
Provision for receivables FE WK 874 949
Receivables written off as uncollectible WH 5 = R BE I 2 FE U R (8r1) (59)
Exchange differences BE M =R — 200
At end of the year FR 3,617 2,824
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd) 23 BEZEURRERREE &)
Bills receivables are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are ERERIBHBEZER180AA - WH
denominated in the following currencies: THEBRELL -
Group
£
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TiET
HK dollar BT 190 1,061
US dollar e 2,952 4,755
Renminbi AR 14,178 19,438
17,320 25,254
The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is BUFREZREERERTERNRE
no recent history of default on bills receivable. T EERER 2R -
A subsidiary of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting to RZZEZNFAAZTHAREZHE
approximately HK$2,515,000 (2008: HK$10,563,000) with recourse in DA 542,515,000 T (ZEENE ¢
exchange for cash as at 30th June 2009. The transactions have been accounted 10,563,000/ 7T) #IPH 18 R 2 BER B 1R
for as collateralised bank advances (note 29). BRTRITUBBERE - FARHE5

RERERRITBR( EE29) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fTEEMIA
2009 2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
€& 8 BE B8R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Held for trading RIELE
— Forward foreign exchange —INERBEL
contracts (note (i)) (PR EEG) 862 1,354 745 352
— Interest rate swaps (note (ii)) —FEEMER
GEAD) — 3,388 529 —
862 4,742 1,274 352
Notes: Bioss
() Forward foreign exchange contracts )l SMNEERBEL
As at 30th June 2009, the Group had outstanding forward foreign currency RZBEZNFANAZ1TH  AEBEX
contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars. The maximum notional principal RUHNERBENFENE BET -
amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June RZZEZAFNA=ZTHREERRKS
2009 were as follows: ERBAEN s RRREARBNT
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TR
Sell HK dollars for US dollars MEBTUEAET 1,107,600 1,165,400
Sell US dollars for HK dollars BEXRTUBEART 195,000 405,600
(i) Interest rate swaps (i) FEEBEL
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at RZEZNERA=TREERIUF
30th June 2009 were as follows: REHEN R ERSBNT -
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Pay interest at fixed rates and AT T M & SRR
receive interest at floating rates 3 SAJE B =R IR A2 85,000 85,000
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Group Company

L] NG
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET TET THET
Cash on hand Be s 287 438 — —
Bank balances RITAE B 90,365 78,444 38 145
90,652 78,882 38 145
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBReFEUTINEEREN :
Group Company
LS NF
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THETT TR THET
HK dollar BT 13,349 22,101 38 145
Renminbi AR¥ 54,265 34,141 — —
US dollar eI 22,737 22321 — —
Others HAth 301 319 — —
90,652 78,882 38 145
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. RITHEARBEERARTERZZFBH X
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi are deposited ROFE - ARENAREREG 2B
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi denominated ERBIEBRF B BRTET - LB
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the MARBREMU 2 BHRRINE - UBE
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC AESEHPRHEXRRTERFER
government. ZINEE BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRME
26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 ESZEMAM
A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit ABOEEBRZERS L TASEHE
period of 30 to 90 days to the Group. ZBRE— MR R30E90H -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BHRNAFNRRIMMOT
Group
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Below 90 days 0—90H 58,923 103,085
91-180 days 91 — 180 H 879 432
Over 180 days 88 180 A 4,160 690
63,962 104,207
The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are BHRNFZEREERAEATEES -
denominated in the following currencies: WIATFIER RELL -
Group
£
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
HK dollar BT 10,303 6,701
Renminbi ARH 17,335 26,258
US dollar e 36,324 71,248
63,962 104,207
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Share capital

Authorised:

At Ist July 2007, 30th June
2008 and 2009

Issued and fully paid:
At Ist July 2007

Issuance of new shares (note (i))

Exercise of share options

during the year (note (ii))
At 30th June 2008 and 2009

Share premium

At Ist July 2007
Issuance of new shares (note (i)
Exercise of share options
during the year (note (i)
Transfer from share option
reserve (note (iii))

At 30th June 2008 and 2009

IR

R-ZTtELA—B —BTAF
R-ZENFAA=TE

EETRAREA
R-_EE+F+A—H
BITE AR (PR&EG))
FNITE 2 BB

(P &£ (i)

RZEENER_ZEZEAFAA=TH

R-_ZELFE+LA—A
BATER (PAE(G)
FRITE 2 B E
(P &% (i)
EARERERE
(P &% Gii))

R-BENER-ZFEZAEARA=1+H

LEN

Number of
ordinary
shares of

HK$0.10 each
BREE
0.108 w2
ERREE

800,000,000

360,000,000

6,000,000

3,200,000

369,200,000

Share capital
nominal

value

BAEE
HK$'000
TET

80,000

36,000
600

320
36,920
HK$'000
TAT

57611
2,400

1,794

66|

62,466
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Contd)
Share premium (Contd)

Notes:

(i) On 3rd January 2008, the Company issued 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each to a third party, who is also the purchaser of the Group's Disposed Business,
at HK$0.5 each for cash, totalling HK$3,000,000, for working capital purposes.

These new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares.

(i) During the year ended 30th June 2008, a total of 3,200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued at an average price of HK$0.66 each for cash upon the
exercise of the relevant options, with total proceeds of approximately
HK$2,114,000. These new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing

shares.

(i)  Upon the exercise of the share options as mentioned in note (i) above, the fair
value of these share options amounting to HK$661,000 previously accounted for

in the share option reserve was transferred to the share premium account.
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Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December

2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees

(including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company

(the "“Share Options”). Movements in the number of Share Options

outstanding during the year are as follows:

At beginning of the year

Granted
Exercised

Lapsed

At end of the year

1
R
By :d
ik

FR

Details of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as

at 30th June 2009 and 30th June 2008 are as follows:

Directors # %

Employees {§ &

Date of grant

RiAH

2nd May 2003
—ZT=FRACH
30th April 2003
—FE=FNA=TH
2nd May 2003
“BE=FhHCH
3th February 2008
“TE\F-A+=H

Expiry date
AR

I'st May 2009
—2EAFRA-H
29th April 2009
“EENFEA-TAA
st May 2009
“Z2ZNERA-H
12th February 2014
“ET-MmE-A+ZA

Exercise price

T&E

HK$0.82
0.828T
HK$0.82
0.82T
HK$0.82
0.82% 7
HK$0.78
0.78% T

BRETE

RE_ZTZ_F+_ARAKETRS
ZBRESE ARRZEZEAMAA
ERER (BRATES) RERBAR
Al 2 A (A E]) - RAFEH
RTEZEREZESIMT -

Number of Share Options

EREZE
2009 2008
23,800,000 25,500,000
— 1,500,000
— (3,200,000)
(22,300,000) —
1,500,000 23,800,000

R-FEAFAASHAR-ZENE
A=+ B REBRE 8B 2 AT
EBBEEDT

Number of shares

subject to the options

BRETRRER

2009 2008

- 15,000,000

— 1,500,000

- 5,800,000
1,500,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 23,800,000
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Share option scheme (Contd)

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which
there is a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant
grantee may exercise up to 33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares
comprised in his or her option. The Group has no legal or constructive

obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and
the amount recognised for the year was HK$ 198,000 (2008: HK$ I 15,000).

The fair values of options granted under the share option scheme determined

using the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Date of grant of share option

R ER 8
Average fair value of share R B RS AR 7
options at date of grant ZVFHRFE
Significant inputs into ERERAZ
the valuation model: BERBARE:
Exercise price 11EE
Share price at grant date REHAEZRE
Expected volatility HREKE

Risk-free interest rate & e A B X

Expected life of options F R 2 TE HA B SR

Expected dividend yield B HIR S [ ¥R

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the

Company prior to the option grant date.
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MA=+H hAZH

BREE (2

REBRETRANFATE 2B
BREENBEN=FFE - BEARA
ARBREZHEHNE— E-_RE
ZEEEWERETEDAASRED
Z=t= BAZATERESZ—A
MERBRE AKREYELTHIET
EENRcEER AT BARE -

REBHEYEERNFERERNBEEE
REATESLEA198,0008T (ZEE
N\ 115,000/ 7T) °

ER-_EANETERABEREER
EErERL < BREZ A FENT

30th April 2nd May  |3th February
2003 2003 2008
“TF=fF —TT=F C—TI)\F

—“A+=H

HK$0.287 HK$0.286 HK$0.277

0287 BT 0286 BT 0277 BT
HK$0.82 HK$0.82 HK$0.78
082 T 082 TT 078 BT
HK$0.82 HK$0.82 HK$0.72
082 T 082 T 072%87T
65% 65% 66%
2.84% 2.72% 1.99%

6 years 6 years 6 years
6%F 6%F 6%F

6% 6% 6%

EREBEAREQFNEEZMAENE
WRBEE REEEZAFEAREN
Rt OMEtE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
(a) Group a) 58

Other reserves

Share Capital Exchange
option reserve  Revaluation fluctuation Retained
reserve  (note (i)) reserve reserve Sub-total earnings Total

eI
BREGE (W)  EfEESE EXRDEE Mt REEA 3]
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
tTér  TEx TRz Tz fEr  TER  TE=n

At It July 2008 RZZENELA-A 6475 408 2115 42026 51,04 250,297 301,321
Release on liquidation of a subsidiary 1~ HBA B EREL — — 419 419 — 419
Loss for the year AEER - - - - — 075)  (0757)
Fmployees share options scheme: ~~ EE R 2

- value of employee services -EERHKEE 198 = — 198 — 198

~ [apse of share options -BRER (6381) - - - (6381 6,38 -
2007/2008 fina XH-FEL/-FEN

dividend paid ERRERE - - - - (3692) (3692)
At 30th June 2009 RZZENE/ AZTA 29 408 2115 4445 45260 BUNY T4
Representing: R :
Proposed 20082009 final dividend ~ BZ=FF/\/
Others Eff 132,009

232,229
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

\

28  RESERVES (Contd) 28 B (1)
(@) Group (Contd) a KB #E)

i1

Other reserves

Share Capital Exchange
option reserve  Revaluation fluctuation Retained
reserve  (note (i) reserve reserve Sub-total earnings Total

LEN- 1
BRERE (W)  EfERS EXRDEA Mt RERA aE
HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$'000
tér  TEx  TEx TRz  TEr  TEr  TEx

At st July 2007 S S 700 408 2015 15070 Mel4 3 258010
Currency translation differences EXZE - - - 26956 26,956 — 26956
Profit for the year RERF — — — — - 24,193 24,193
Fmployees share options scheme: BB B R#ER 2
— value of employee services -EERKEE 15 = = 5 = 15
- exercise of share options -f1ERE (661) = = = (661) — (661)
200612007 final dvidend paid =255/ 25%¢
ERRERE — - — — (3,600) (3,600)
200712008 interim dividend paid =25t/ ZFEN
ERPERS - - - — — (3692) (3692)
At 30th June 2008 RZEENEXA=TA 6475 408 2115 4026 5004 250297 301,321
Representing: fk -
Proposed 2007/2008 final dividend B =FT+/
2R\ ERERHRE 3691
Others A 246,605

250297
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

28 RESERVES (Contd) 28 f#fE (&)
(b) Company (b) 27
Other reserves
Rt
Contributed Share
surplus option Retained
(note (i) reserve Sub-total earnings Total
B4RR
(W)  BRERE it RERF 4
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T3 7 7 7 7
At Ist July 2008 RZZZ\$tA-R 62,511 6,475 68,986 3793 72,779
Loss for the year KEER — = = (584) (584)
Employee share options scheme: EERRETE
~ value of employee services -EERBER - 198 198 — 198
~ lapse of share options —BERERE — (6,381) (6381) 6,381 —
2007/2008 final dividend paid TRZE%L/
2T \FERERE — - — (3692) (3692)
At 30th June 2009 RZZENESA=TH 62511 292 62,803 5898 68,701
Representing: &
Proposed 2008/2009 final dividend BE-ZT)\/
“TRNFEARHRS =
Others it 5898
5898
At Ist July 2007 RZZT+F+A-H 62,511 7,021 69,532 4329 73,861
Profit for the year RERH — — — 6,756 6,756
Employee share options scheme: ERBMRETE -
—value of employee services —EERBEER = 5 [15 — [5
— exercise of share options — TR RE — (661) (661) — (661)
200612007 final dividend paid INZFER/
“ZELEERERE - — - (3600) (3.600)
2007/2008 interim dividend paid TRHZF%L/
—ZZN\FETHRE — — (3692) (3692)
At 30th June 2008 RZZZNE/A=TH 62511 6475 68,986 3793 72,779
Representing: R&:
Proposed 2007/2008 final dividend ~ B#-Z%t/
“ET\FRRHBRE 3692
Others it 101
3793
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(b) Company (Contd)
Notes:

(i) Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2008: HK$408,000)
represents the aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the

“Reorganisation”).

(i) Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited at the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued under the Reorganisation.
At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of

reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.
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(ii)

R7 (£)

X & B 2 B X # B K
408,000/ 7 (ZZZ )\ F : 408,000/
T DRELBREBERAAICERE
BEERHBERR-ANATERAF
BEESEEMA ([E4A]) g7 zRAT
BRI E AR 2 RAAER
BME L EE

AralzE# A - J)Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited A&
HEMAHZEERRE S EAAAR
BEAMBT RNAEME ZERE -
AEBEHRRNERBAEHENE
DRI EBEHER °

BEBRE-NN-F2FZ (KE
i) BEERSTULRTRER  BRIEF
AEEHAENARNKMNREZHIES
ERoREREIELFERLIH A
& RMARBEEZNEREESREA
MERE 8 EREE HTRARR DS
BzfE  MZARMEIRIKTR
EENEZBHDELDIK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

29 BORROWINGS 29 188
Group
%8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Non-current borrowings FREEE
Long-term bank loans - secured RERITER - BHEA — 8,523
Less: Current portion of B RESRITE SR - EE G
long-term bank loans — (2,000)
— 6,523
Obligations under finance leases MEMERTE 2,740 5,507
Less: Obligation under finance B BEEEEE -G
lease — current portion (2,047) (2,764)
693 2,743
693 9,266
Current borrowings mENEE
Short-term bank loans — secured RHBETER-FER 40,987 48,942
Trust receipt loans — secured ERREERX-FEM 55,469 140,45
Bank advances for discounted bills (note 23)  #RfTBEIREHE BT (M5 23) 2,515 10,563
98,971 199,956
Current portion of long-term bank loans REBRITER A H — 2,000
Obligations under finance MEMERF AL
leases — current portion 2,047 2,764
101,018 204,720
Total borrowings BEE 101,711 213,986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

29 B8 (&)
AEEEEZEAEEEATERS -
WA TS G ABN

29 BORROWINGS (Contd)
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values,

and is denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
HK dollar BT 58,209 145,959
Renminbi AR 30,242 54767
US dollar ETT 13,260 13,260
101,711 213,986

At 30th June 2009, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable

within five years and are repayable as follows:

RZFZFAFRA=ZTH  FEENR
TEFOFRAFNEER  #FHWT :

Bank borrowings

RITEE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAT
With | year —FR 98,971 201,956
Between | to 2 years —FEWF — 6,523
98,971 208,479
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

29 BORROWINGS (Contd)

The Group's finance lease obligations are analysed as follows:

29 B8 (&)

\

T0RH

AEBZRMEBEEEATOT :

Finance lease obligations

Total minimum lease payments:

Within | year
Between | to 2 years
Between 3 to 5 years

Future finance charges on finance leases

BEREZARRMBER

BMEHEREEZRE

Present value of obligations under finance leases

The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows:

Within | year
Between | to 2 years
Between 3 to 5 years

MEREEHR
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
2,098 2,899
473 2,103
236 713
2,807 5715
(67) (208)
2,740 5,507
EHEERE L RENT
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHT
2,047 2,764
459 2,048
234 695
2,740 5,507
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The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

— at fixed rates — B H =
— at floating rates — R X
2009
HKD RMB
BT ARH
Obligations under finance leases EIEHEE{E 3.11% —
Trust receipt loans ERREER 1.83% —
Short-term and RH kR
long-term bank loans ROEHX — 6.54%
Bank advances for #]IT
discounted bills EEES S — 2.02%

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (note
16), leasehold land and land use rights (note |7) and investment properties

(note 18) of the Group.

The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the related
proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group’s trade and bills
receivables (note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance

sheet date.
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2.20%

REEABRAFAEEZERY MRS
PERE RINEFFEMT -

Group
%
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
98,971 199,956
2,740 14,030
101,711 213,986
2008
HKD RMB usb
BT ARE e
3.25% — —
3.29% — —
— 6.87% 6.35%
— 6.80% —

BROEFATEERLODE - BB R
R (MeE1e) MELMR LM ERE
(&E17) R BEME (KiE18) REMA -

WEREZLHRARRUEATRITME
RITBFENBEREORTER - 0
BEABXRALSHAREEREGR L
REREFIFERRAKE LB Sk
W el Rz (FYiE23) RS HIE R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFPEHRFRMEE

30 DEFERRED TAXATION 30 ELEBIE
Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences BEEMGRIFERARGEEAEEARE
under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ErERMOBENARERERZR
by the balance sheet date. iAE e
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable EEEEARTRNERENERESR
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the REBAEAGHE  BETMERIR
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following F—BE - AR SREEMEHEE
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance EEEOREE - Bt AEBEHREE
sheet: THEEREERBRATIK
Group
£E
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE (8,386) (5,618)
Deferred tax liabilities BERBAE 4,155 2,680
(4,231) (2,938)
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: BEREEAMEREANFEZHNT
Group
£E
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
At beginning of the year F 4 (2,938) 2816
Credited to income statement FEWERFTA
(note 10) (M$7E10) (1,293) (5,754)
At end of the year FR (4,231) (2,938)
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without

taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

At beginning of the year
Charged/(credited) to

income statement
At end of the year

Deferred tax assets:

At beginning of the year
(Charged)/credited to

income statement

At end of the year

2008 / 2009 Annual Report

Fair value gains on
investment properties
REMELATELE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx
F7) 2,420 1,083
MR
/ (GtA) 7 1337
FX 2,537 2,420
Provisions
g
2009 2008 2009
HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tirn i TiEx
L) 217 513 1,303
Ehax
(118 /3t A (47 2209 1,669
EX 2,45 N 2972

FREEHEAER AR S
MBIEE 2 EREHA M

BELEMERE :
Accelerated tax
depreciation Total
MERHHE aR
2009 2008 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TETL TER
1,039 2,246 3,459
640 (1,207) 757
1,679 1,039 4216
BIEMEEE :
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation
BEER AERBHE
2008 2009 2008 2009
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TEn TET TRL
— 2372 — 6,397
1303 858 2372 2,050
1303 3230 2372 8,447

(E2[F—

2008
HK'000
TRET

3,329

3,459

Total

ag
2008
HK$000
ThET

513

5684

6397



Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. At 30th June 2009, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to HK$46,272,000
(2008: HK$17,836,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$4,607,000 (2008: HK$1,945,000) will expire from 2013 to 2014. The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not
been recognised amounted to HK$7,801,000 (2008: HK$3,108,000).

As at 30th June 2009, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$14,000,000 (2008: HK$6,000,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2008 and 2009, the Company had no material deferred tax assets

or liabilities.

RAEBORBERMBRANETHER
BEERANEB BB = ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ARERGBANERNIE - R_F
NERA=TH AEETERITLE
MEHARERT RN HBER
46,272,000 T (Z T T N\ &
17,836,000 7T) BAREEMEHEE
7,801,000 T (ZEF )\ 5 : 3,108,000
BIL) c BT —ZFE-_T—UFI|H
KB 75 518 54,607,0008 L (ZFEN
£ 11,945,000 7T) °

RZEBEZEAFANA=1H  AEELX
SETHEMEARZ DRI LD
14,000,000% & (Z T T N F
6,000,000 7T) 2 B Z B EREH A
B BASEZHZEEREEL
BOERE  UARRAJRZBRASTER
EZRA g ek -

R-BENEABS+ER-ZENGF
RAZTE  AATLEEABELHE
AR -

2008 / 2009 Annual Report @



Operating (loss)/profit
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights
— Amortisation of intangible assets
— Unrealised fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments held for trading
— Fair value gains on investment properties
— Gain on disposal of an investment property
— Gain on disposal of a business
— Share-based compensation expenses
— Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary
— Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets
— Provision for impairment of receivables
— Provision for impairment of inventories
Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
—Trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits
—Trade payables, other payables and

deposits received and accruals

Cash generated from operations
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ke (BR) /afl

—-ME  BELRRBIE

—HENE  BELRREL
(kz) /B

—THE 30 o £ {5 A I 8

- B EEHE

- REEEITESRIAZRER

NYEBE
—REMENAFEKS
—HEREME K
—HEXH RS
-~k RERNHEER
—-MEBLRAERER
—AHHENHEE

MIE
— R FUR B2
—FEREERERR
BEGHE
-=F¥
—BHREF R ELRRE

HpUR - BN R RS
—BES5RNE - EtEATRR

BElFTE RERER

REXBELEZHE

2009

HK$’000

TER

(5,254)

13,128

(122)

448
800

4,802
(710)

198
419

1,150
874
3,036

44,721

129,851

(45,635)

147,706

2008

HK$'000
THET

42,797

15,266

34

414
800

50
(8,477)
(443)

(13,235)

['15

949
1,044

(38,796)

37,225

(28,354)

9,389



31

32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONSOLIDAED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Contd)

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of property, plant and

31 &RE

HFEMBRRMEE

BEREBR (B)

EHEREXRN  HEVE  BERER

equipment comprise: HRRTERBE -
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Net book amount (note |6) BRmEFE (KEE16) 170 127
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWME  BERXE
plant and equipment (note 8) Wz (EBE) (Ms) 122 (34)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BER
plant and equipment REBIER 292 93
COMMITMENTS 32 Ak
(a) Capital commitments (a) BARE

At 30th June 2009, the Group had the following capital commitments for
addition of property, plant and equipment:

W-PEREAA=+A  A£E
BN  BERRBZANAR
mT -

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER THET

Authorised but not contracted for EREEREL — —
Contracted but not provided for (note) ~ EFRAEREE (M) 32,656 7,236
32,656 7236

Note:

In June 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire certain properties
in Hong Kong from an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$29,000,000. As at 30 June 2009, the unpaid amount totalling HK$26,100,000

has been included in the above as capital commitments.

B3

RZBENEAA  AEAEBUE=
AETHE - AR 2K (829,000,0007%
THE—NREENE - RZTTNF
NAZTH - K2 H£26,100,0007%
TERREERN EZEREER -
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(b) Commitment under operating leases

As at 30th June 2009, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

Not later than one year —FR
Later than one year and not —FREMENLF
later than five years

Later than five years BHFR

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The
remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares
of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the

Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in note |5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party

transactions had been undertaken by the Group during the year

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.
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(b) HEHEAE

RIZTZAFRA=TR  ££E
ARTIIHEIH AL RE
FIAAHBELEREZRRED
MERK

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THET
7,250 8910
6,908 16,637
207 295
14,365 25,842

A& B A Good Benefit Limited (£ 1 B
RABESEMKL AR E - HEA
ARAIBAZET=8=IRHE  H&rz
BAZN+ EBLtREREZREE
Good Benefit Limited® & £ A 22 ik 4
AARAIZBAEZTEHHE o

ARAMBEEHRRALEEZEE
EBRAE  EHAHFMERGA B BER
KM GE15HE -

EERASEENAEEATES Y
BEXEBEALRS -

EERAEADBRKKER A A AGood
Benefit Limited (E & B R X BB &
. ZAF]) e



The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2009:

Name

L

Ngai Hing (International)
Company Limited
(note b) (P&t b)

Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Ltd.

REREEBRH
BRAE

Hong Kong Colour
Technology Limited

BREXBRAT

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited
RETRENARDA

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AR R R
R*EANER

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
EBRTR
BRRA/EMER

US$100
100 ETT

HK$93,200,000
93,200,000 7T

500,000
ordinary shares
of HK$ | each
500,000 & 3 ik
BR1ET

2,000,000

ordinary shares of
HK$!1 each
2,000,000 & @M%
B 1T

RZZFZFAFAA=1TH  AREZE

EZMBARMT :

Principal activities

TEXR

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEECAR
EE AR

Manufacture and trading of
colorants and compounded

plastic resins

EBANKERE

Manufacture of
engineering plastic
products
BETR2
BRBEM

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

AREHE
ZERBRAES L
100

100

100

762
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Name

a8

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited

BREPBRHARDA

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials (Hong Kong)
Limited

BRABBRR ()
BRAE

Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co,, Ltd.

LEREBBRHN
ARAH

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co,, Ltd.

BEREZEBRH
BRAT
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Place of
incorporation/

operation and

Issued and

fully paid

*kind of legal up share capital/
entity registered capital
Gy RV d$:. ERTK
R*E AR BERE/EMER
Hong Kong 1,000
e ordinary shares of
HK$ ! each

1,000 @R

BR1ET

500,000

non-voting deferred

shares of HK$ | each (note ¢)

500,000 i R 1E

BB ET

(FfzE c)

Hong Kong 500,000
ER ordinary shares of
HK$ I each

500,000 @R EMR1ET

The PRC HK$34,400,000

* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
*IEBELE

34,400,000 % 7T

HK$ 10,500,000
10,500,000 & 7T

Principal activities

TEXHK

Investment holding and
property holding
REEZBRR
RENE

Trading of plastic materials

BEEZBRH

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHESREH

L& &R R

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEEEH
REBA B

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

AREHR

A {3 N
100

100

100

100



Name

L

NHH Coltec Limited
(previously known as
Ngai Hing PlastChem Co,
Limited)
REBZEBRAT]
(FZRBBERAT)

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd.
RETREH
(L&) ERR7A

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing
Trading Co. Ltd

EERERE
BRAR

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
(Hong Kong) Limited

RETRER (BE)
BRRA

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AR R R
R*EANER

Hong Kong
Bk

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
P E
*IEBELE

Hong Kong
&R

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
EBRTR
BERE/EMER

2,000,000

ordinary shares of
HKS$ | each
2,000,000 & i@k
BR1ET

US$200,000
200,000 7T

US$100,000
100,000 %7

1,000,000

ordinary shares of
HK$!1 each
1,000,000 & M
B 1A

Principal activities

TEXER

Manufacture and sale of
plastic products
BER
HERBEM

Trading of engineering
plastic products

EETRZBEM

Trading of plastic
materials and pigments
EEER

RE R EH

Trading of engineering
plastic products

EETREBEM

Effective
percentage of
equity held by

the Company

AREHE
ZERBRAES L
100

762

100

762
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Place of

incorporation/ Issued and Effective
operation and fully paid percentage of
*kind of legal up share capital/ equity held by
Name entity registered capital Principal activities the Company
AR R R EBRTR AREEE
A% R*E AR BERE/ EMES TEEK LEBRRABD L
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 200,000%7C  colorants and compounded
EFRETERRE -owned enterprise plastic resins
BRAT hE BERHEECHR
*IEBELE BB A K
Guangzhou Ngai Sog The PRC RMB5,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Hing Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 5,000,000 A R # EERBRK
BMTHRERES -owned enterprise
BRAE i
OEBEELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 400,000 & 7T EZRBRH
LBRBREEE -owned enterprise
REBEEERAT i
*EBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 60
Company Limited B ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERRENBRAT HKS$! each materials
10,000 & B RENHE
BR1ET RRZEBR#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
Notes:

@)

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability
companies. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned

enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by
the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the
Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or
attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of

such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group.To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

HFEMBRRMEE

35 FEMBLF(
M

i

(@) MARBERRBEZESEMKLL
WERARHAEREMLLAR - ERS
BRIZMBARDAIERELE -

(b) FTA LY Z2EEMHEAFFRNga Hing
(International) Company Limitedg 4
NAIEHRAIN YRR REHER

5o

c) REBBERHERNA(RE])EBRR
BETBRND 2 HAABR2ERE 28
MERBBED R - MEERERHAEZ

EERNPBRREBRRAEBEXLE
BRARRAEINE LERE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR @ BRB4BTHEERT#
BEROFEARLAIBEZERG 2
FEMAE

(d ERIHEERRETFEXEBNE

FEIBRAEEEERE T BN

DRZARAWBAR - EERRIHT

EMBRRAz#Ee<ERBRT
o
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Five Year Financial Summary
AFERBHRE

V)

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years

are as follows:

ARERBELERBFREFLXE  BE
FREWT

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TET
(Restated)
(251)
Results £
(Loss)/profit attributable DRI R A
to equity holders of (B18) /&H
the Company (20,757) 24,193 14,975 7,082 14,951
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets RE®RE 592,040 764,431 712,049 649,568 679,194
Total liabilities BEHE (195,817) (346,327) (352,984) (301,320) (339,923)
Minority interests DER R R (19,348) (17,397) (7,444) (11,764) (10,194)
Capital and reserves AGEEY T
attributable to the R K
Company’s equity holders 376,875 400,707 351,621 336,484 329,077

Since the year ended 30th June 2006, the Group has adopted the new/revised
standards and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
were mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after Ist July
2005.The figures as at and for the year ended 30th June 2005 have been restated as

required.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited
Hong Kong Colour Technology Limited

NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre

10 Wo Shing Street

Fotan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk
E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

|7 Dai Fu Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756

Guangzhou Office:

A1806 Center Plaza

No. 163 Linhe Road West

Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226 Zip : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223

——

Company Directory

"

AEER

w

RETERLF

(RERZEMELZ BRAR])

REBBREH (FE)
BReEXFRAF
REEERRAF
REIREHAERA
REIREH(FH)
RERREHNERA

ERNEE

B

RN

REAI0%
BEIEFLE3E
BE 0 (852) 2693 1663
fBE : (852) 2694 0877

ARAF

5
BRATF
=

A4E + http:/;www.nhh.com.hk
BT H AU info@nhh.com.hk

FHB R
N

R K
NI TET
REHITH

EiE ¢ (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
BE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

R
A R AN
BRE

REm

BHARBEIXER

B ¢ (86) 769-8558 8755 WEURR : 523940
{EE : (86) 769-8558 1756

BMBER
AR LA
BEM

XA &
AT 3K 16357
R EIRR E A 1806

T 55 1 (86) 20-3831 0226 EBRSE 1 510620
BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
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Company Directory

AEERE

Shanghai Office: Nabi=3 Y A

Unit E, I6th Floor FEARAME

Zhao Feng Universe Building Ligm

No.1800 Zhongshan West Road H LI 75 B 18005

Shanghai KERFAE

The People's Republic of China | 61EERE

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235 EiE ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997 EEURSE : 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977 BE : (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory: g

No. 8100, Songze Ave. i ARAM

Qingpu Industrial Zone i1l

Shanghai R

The People’s Republic of China 74 E K ¥B8 10057

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700 EiE ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 BHRSR ¢ 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555 BE : (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory: EERIL

Haier (Jiao Zhou) International Industrial Zone RE AR AME

Jiao Zhou, ECO & TEC Development Zone, Qingdao BEERNEERMAER

The People’s Republic of China BE BN ERIXER

Tel: (86) 532-8727 3127 Zip: 266300 E3E ¢ (86) 532-8727 3127 BHURYE : 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3128 fBE : (86) 532-8727 3128

Chengdu Office: REBRERE

2nd Floor, Huaxia Building RE AR HME

No.3 North Jianshe Road Section 3 M)l s BT

Chengdu City, Sichuan Province BRB=8R=%

The People's Republic of China EEAE_#

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 61005 | E3E ¢ (86) 28-8328 5026 EHARSR ¢ 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126 BE : (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory: BP9 Rt :

I/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park, RE AR AME

Guankou Town, Jimei District, BEEEMT

Xiamen City, Fujian Province, EXRENE

The People's Republic of China BRIER7BE (118)

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023 T 5T ¢ (86) 592-609321 1 EHMRSE : 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600 BE : (86) 592-6093600
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